
                                

AGENDA

CABINET
THURSDAY, 17 JANUARY 2019

2.00 PM

SHEKINAH ROOM, JUBILEE CHURCH LIFE CENTRE, 5 LONDON 
ROAD, GRANTHAM, NG31 6EY

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

The Leader Councillor Matthew Lee, Cabinet Member for Cultural Services 
(Chairman)

The Deputy Leader Councillor Kelham Cooke, Cabinet Member for Business 
Transformation & Commissioning

Cabinet Members: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Environment
Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications 
Councillor Nick Neilson, Cabinet Member for Housing 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail & Visitor 
Economy
Councillor Jacky Smith, Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Health, Wellbeing & Skills
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Cabinet Support 
Officer:

Jo Toomey Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the public are entitled to attend the meeting of the Cabinet at 
which key decisions will be taken on the issues listed on the following pages. 

1  APOLOGIES 

2  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 DECEMBER 2018 (Pages 3 - 8)

3  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY) 



4  DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS 2019/20 (Pages 9 - 64)

To agree the draft Budget proposals for 2019/20, incorporating any feedback 
from the Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee, for consultation.

5  MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE COUNCIL OR OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEES (Pages 65 - 67)

Report number LDS337 of the Leader of the Council.

6  REPRESENTATIONS AND QUESTIONS FROM NON CABINET MEMBERS 
(Pages 69 - 71)

Report number LDS339 of the Leader of the Council.

7  CABINET FORWARD PLAN (Pages 73 - 83)

Report number LDS340 of the Leader of the Council.

8  ITEMS RAISED BY CABINET MEMBERS INCLUDING REPORTS ON KEY 
AND NON KEY DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS. 
(Pages 85 - 143)

Report number LDS338 of the Leader of the Council.

9  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT 



MINUTES
CABINET
THURSDAY, 20 DECEMBER 2018

THE LEADER: Councillor Matthew Lee (Chairman)
THE DEPUTY LEADER: Councillor Kelham Cooke

CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Adam Stokes

NON-CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Bob Sampson
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS

Chief Executive (Aidan Rave)
Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Resources (Debbie Muddimer)
Assistant Chief Executive, Transformation & Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Assistant Director, Commercial & Operational (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Assistant Director Resources (Richard Wyles)
Head of Governance (Ben Bix)
InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

CO57. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Neilson and Robins.

Councillor Exton, the Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, also apologised as he was unable to attend the meeting.

3

Agenda Item 2



CO58. MINUTES FROM 1 NOVEMBER 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record.

CO59. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)

No interests were disclosed.

CO60. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 2018/19: MID-YEAR UPDATE 
(RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL)

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented report number CFM480 which gave 
Cabinet members the full year forecast position for the General Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account for 2018/19 as at the end of Quarter 2 (30 September 2018). He 
drew Members’ attention to the table that showed the General Fund budget position 
by directorate and the information about the business rate pilot scheme and 
proposals for the use of financial gains arising from that.

Reference was made to the benefits of having a property maintenance reserve, 
which included provision for any necessary repairs to be carried out more 
expediently.

A question was raised about the payback period for projects and activities funded 
from the ‘invest to save’ reserve. While reference was made to a guideline payback 
period of 3 years, the actual payback period would be business case and 
circumstance specific. It was also noted that the reserve could be used for both 
capital and revenue activity. 

Discussions also ensued about the governance arrangements to support those 
decisions that were delegated to individual Cabinet Members in conjunction with the 
Section 151 Officer. Bids for funding from the ‘invest to save’ reserve would require 
the submission of a business case and it was anticipated that any decision to 
approve funding would follow the Council’s normal decision-making arrangements, 
which would provide Members with an opportunity to call-in decisions and mean that 
any decisions that had been taken would be reported to the Cabinet. Where an item 
was considered potentially controversial, it was suggested that it may be appropriate 
if it was subject to pre-decision scrutiny, there was however recognition that there 
were occasions where decisions needed to be made quickly. It was suggested that 
the committees and governance working group could consider the arrangements for 
how these delegated decisions could be made including whether they might appear 
on the Forward Plan.

Cabinet members agreed that to ensure consistency of language with other decisions 
of Council, those decisions that were delegated to individual Cabinet Members 
should be taken “in consultation with” the Section 151 Officer. 

The Cabinet AGREED to note the forecast 2018/19 revenue and capital outturn 
position for both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account as at the end of 
Quarter 2 and RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:

4



1. The allocation of the projected business rate financial growth as set out at 
paragraph 5.9 of report number CFM480

2. The changes to earmarked reserves as set out at paragraph 5.13 of report 
number CFM480

3. That approval to utilise the Invest to Save reserve be delegated to the Cabinet 
Member for Finance in consultation with the Section 151 Officer

4. That approval to utilise the property maintenance reserve and the ICT reserve 
be delegated to the Deputy Leader of the Council in consultation with the 
Section 151 Officer

CO61. COUNCIL TAX BASE 2019/20 (RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL)

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented report number CFM477 which asked the 
Cabinet to recommend the Council Tax base for 2019/20 and set the collection rate 
for council tax.

The Cabinet:

1. RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL the approval of the tax base for the year 
2019/20 as detailed at Appendix A of report number CFM477 equating to 
47,125.70

2. APPROVED the collection rate for Council Tax is set at 98.80%

CO62. JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 
LINCOLNSHIRE (KEY DECISION)

The Cabinet Member for Environment stated that the Lincolnshire Joint Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy (appended to report number ENV710) had been 
brought to Cabinet for ratification. The Strategy had been developed by the 
Lincolnshire Waste Partnership, which comprised all of the collection authorities in 
Lincolnshire together with Lincolnshire County Council as the disposal authority and 
the Environment Agency. The partners were keen to ensure that the service provided 
in Lincolnshire represented value for money; the strategy also emphasised 
innovation and reducing materials entering the waste stream.

Reference was made to the food waste pilot that was underway in South Kesteven 
and the announcement of the Government’s waste management strategy. Cabinet 
Members asked whether there were any trends in the kind of authorities that had 
food waste collection schemes. As an alternative to food waste recycling schemes, 
one non-Cabinet Member asked whether consideration would be given to supplying 
composters at the cost of the bin.

Cabinet Members noted that when the strategy was considered by Lincolnshire 
County Council it had received unanimous support. 

5



Whilst there were discrepancies in the materials that were accepted for recycling in 
each local authority area, discussions were underway to streamline the materials that 
were accepted so that there was greater consistency.

Cabinet Members asked that their thanks to the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
the Assistant Director, Commercial and Operational and the Head of Street Scene be 
placed on record.

The Cabinet AGREED to adopt the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for 
Lincolnshire as set out in Appendix 1 of report number ENV710.

CO63. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE COUNCIL OR 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Report number LDS333 of the Leader of the Council summarised the activity of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees since the last report was presented to Cabinet on 
1 November 2018.

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
stated that the meeting that had been scheduled for December 2018 had been 
cancelled. The Committee was next due to meet on 12 February 2019 when Chief 
Superintendent Chris Davidson from Lincolnshire Police would attend to talk about 
modern slavery and the Lincolnshire Community Safety Team. Reference was also 
made to a presentation by the Police and Crime Commissioner on modern slavery, to 
which Members of the Council would receive an invitation. He added that the 
Committee had been due to be addressed on the NHS 5-year plan by John Turner, 
but this had been delayed because of the impact of the negotiations regarding the 
exit of Great Britain from the European Union.

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman had nothing to add to the contents of report number LDS333.

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee was not in 
attendance at the meeting.

One non-Cabinet Member who was present at the meeting asked about the work that 
the Committee had done in respect of street lighting; Cabinet Members state that 
they were happy with the general policy that the Committee had proposed however 
additional work was required with regard to financing. Through dialogue there was an 
indication that once this work had been completed it would be welcomed for the 
policy to be brought directly to Cabinet for decision rather than being returned to the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee for further consideration.

6



Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee was not in 
attendance at the meeting.

Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee said that its focus 
going forward would be loneliness. He also commended a presentation that had 
been given by the Head of Arts at the Committee’s previous meeting. Attention was 
drawn to two grant schemes (one for heritage and one for arts) on which members of 
the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been briefed. 

The Committee had also received an update on the use of the promotional trailer; 
where the trailer was unable to access villages because of its size, a gazebo or 
marquee was being deployed instead.

CO64. ITEMS RAISED BY CABINET MEMBERS INCLUDING REPORTS ON 
KEY AND NON KEY DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS.

Report number LDS334 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet of 
decisions that had been taken by individual Members since the last meeting of the 
Cabinet was held on 1 November 2018.

 Appendix 1: Approval of a new lease with Stamford Cricket Club, Uffington 
Road, Stamford

 Appendix 2: Extensions to mid-Lent fairs in Grantham and Stamford
 Appendix 3: Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy
 Appendix 4: Funding proposals following changes to the senior management 

structure

CO65. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED FROM NON CABINET MEMBERS

Report number LDS335 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet that no 
non-Cabinet Members had submitted requests to make representations prior to the 
publication of the agenda for this meeting. Since the agenda was published, one non-
Cabinet Member had indicated that they wished to make representations. 

Councillor Baxter referred to land that had recently been acquired by the Council. 
Reports had been presented to recent meetings of Cabinet and Council, both of 
which were exempt under paragraph 3 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). Councillor Baxter asked whether it would be possible to confirm in public 
session the location of the land together with the status of the acquisition. The 
Leader would update Councillor Baxter outside the meeting since the information 
was still classified as commercially sensitive. The Leader stated that once the 
acquisition process was complete and as soon as it was possible, details would be 
publicly announced.

7



Councillor Baxter also asked whether there was any update on the location of the 
new leisure centre for the Deepings and a disposal strategy for the current centre. 
The Leader stated that a number of sites were being actively considered and it was 
his intention to bring a full report to the February meeting of Cabinet.

Finally, Councillor Baxter asked about an outline planning application for land 
adjacent to Millfield Road in Market Deeping, which had been submitted by 
Lincolnshire County Council. The land to which the application related was subject to 
a current application for designation as a village green. The Leader stated that he 
was aware that the planning application had been submitted and that he did not know 
the date by which the village green application would be determined. The Cabinet 
Member for Growth and Communications and the Strategic Director, Growth were 
asked to update Councillor Baxter outside the meeting.

CO66. CABINET FORWARD PLAN

Report number LDS336 of the Leader of the Council gave an indication of the items 
that would be presented to Cabinet over the following twelve-month period. The 
report also included items that were scheduled to be considered at Council meetings 
during the municipal year.

Members noted that an update to the plan was required in respect of the asset 
management strategy; the date by which the item was due to be considered by 
Cabinet had been changed to allow prior consideration by the Growth Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. Members also noted that the report and recommendations of 
the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on street lighting were scheduled 
to be brought before Cabinet early in 2019.

CO67. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 15:00.

8



CABINET

Report of: Councillors:
Cabinet Member for Finance
Cabinet Member for Housing

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

CABINET

17TH JANUARY 2019

BUDGET PROPOSALS 2019/20 (CFM485)

Decision
Proposal:

 Budget Framework Proposal

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stokes – Finance 
Councillor Nick Neilson - Housing

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406210
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 4 January 2019

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Financial Services
Tel: 01476 406208
Email: Alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 4 January 2019 

Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406301
Email: debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 7 January 2019 

Councillor Adam Stokes and Councillor Nick Neilson
8 January 2019

9

Agenda Item 4

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to present to Cabinet the draft Budget estimates for 2019/20, 
revenue and capital, for both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account and provide 
the details that are included in the budget proposals.

RECOMMENDATION
Cabinet is asked to:

1. Consider the budget proposals for 2019/20 in respect of:

 General Fund – Revenue and Capital
 Housing Revenue Account – Revenue and Capital

2. Approve consultation in respect of proposed Council Tax levels for 2019/20 for the 
period 21st January - 3 February (inclusive).

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Council is required to set a balanced budget and agree the level of Council Tax for 
2019/20.  The budget setting process commenced in August 2018, and the proposals have 
been formulated by the Cabinet, working closely with senior officers, through a number of 
budget workshops.   The objective of this process was to realign resources and spending 
plans to ensure the key priorities and aspirations of the Council can be delivered.  

1.2 This report covers a number of areas:

 The funding position for the General Fund (section 2)
 The draft general fund budget proposals (section 3)
 Fees and Charges (section 4)
 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) position (section 5)
 The Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2021/22 (section 6)
 Reserves and Balances (section 7)

The Budget Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting took place on 10th January 
2019 to consider the draft proposals, as set out in this report.  A summary of the key points 
from the scrutiny debate, along with any changes that were requested will be presented to 
the Cabinet meeting on the day.

2. THE FUNDING POSITION FOR THE GENERAL FUND

2.1 Provisional Finance Settlement 2019/20 

The Council remains within the Government’s four-year funding deal after it had 
successfully submitted an Efficiency Plan. 2019/20 is the last year of the four-year deal and 
the period after this remains uncertain as the Government has yet to conclude the findings 
of the fair funding review, which was launched last year.  This review is intended to 
fundamentally challenge the current complex formula driven funding allocation to Councils 
and replace it with a simplified, more transparent formula.  At the time of writing this report 
no further information is known so the latter two financial years of the indicative budgets are 
currently compiled on a series of assumptions regarding funding levels.  

10



2.2 The four-year deal covered the period 2016/17 to 2019/20 and allows the Council to 
consider annual Council Tax increases of £5 per annum for the period of the Plan.  

Therefore, in summary the proposed funding allocation for the Council is as follows:

Table 1

Heading 2019/20
£m

2018/19
£m

Settlement funding assessment (SFA) 3.610 4.022

New Homes Bonus 1.957 2.086

Rural Services Delivery Grant 0.295 0.236

Compensation for under-indexing the 
business rate multiplier

0.118 0.081

Total 5.862 6.425
Variance 9% reduction 

2.3 The SFA referred to above is the Government’s baseline funding assessment using the 
current funding formula that determines the amount the Council requires to deliver local 
services.  The SFA does not take into consideration any local growth in business rates and 
therefore the actual amount the Council includes in the budget framework is greater than 
the figure shown above.  

2.4 The amount allocated in respect of New Homes Bonus is transferred to the Local Priorities 
Reserve each year and is a primary source of funding for one off projects or seed funding 
for both capital and revenue. 

 The rural services delivery grant is recognition of the additional financial burden that rural 
authorities incur in delivering local services to residents living in remote areas. 

The compensation factor is grant allocation to all authorities for the Government 
understating the rating multiplier since 2014/15 and to reflect the multiplier calculation 
change from RPI to CPI from 2018/19.   

2.5 The 2016/17 local government finance settlement announced Core Spending Power figures 
for the period 2016/17 to 2019/20.  These amounts were subsequently updated for the 
2017/18 and 2018/19 local government finance settlements.  The provisional settlement for 
2019/20 was announced on 13 December 2018.  The key points from this are set out 
below. 

 Council Tax – For district councils, increases of less than 3% or up to and 
including £5 (whichever is higher) above the authority’s relevant basic amount of 
council tax for 2018/19 can be made without triggering a referendum.

 New Homes Bonus - the 2019/20 allocations have been announced (previously 
these figures were only indicative – based on previous years’ allocations).   The 
technical consultation on the 2019/20 Local Government Finance Settlement, 
published in September 2018, suggested there would be an increase to the 
deadweight for the 2019/20 “in-year” allocations.  However due to an additional 
£10m of funding being added, the Government has not made changes to the 
deadweight threshold (at 0.4%) or the eligibility of properties to qualify for the 
funding. 

11



 Business Rates Pilot – the Lincolnshire authorities applied for a continuation of 
pilot status for 2019/20 (which is a reduced scheme from 100% to 75% retention).  
However, as the Government had already indicated its preference was to award 
pilot schemes to those areas not previously granted.  Therefore, it has been 
confirmed that Lincolnshire was unsuccessful in its bid and will therefore revert 
back to a pool (as it was in 2017/18) in 2019/20.  The Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan had not assumed the pilot status would continue in 2019/20 and 
therefore there has been no adverse financial impact as a result of this 
announcement.

 Rural Services Delivery Grant – in response to successful lobbying by authorities 
that provide services in sparse rural areas the Government has acknowledged the 
existence of the current deficiencies in the funding mechanism and has provided a 
one-off additional £16m to rural authorities.  Therefore, the funding for the Council 
has increased in 2019/20 from the previously announced £236k to £295k.  It is 
widely anticipated the issues of rurality and the additional costs associated with 
providing local services to a largely rural population will be considered as part of 
the fair funding review which is due for completion in 2019. 

 Negative Revenue Support Grant – The Council had previously been notified 
that it would be the recipient of negative RSG of £26k in 2019/20 but it has been 
confirmed that the Government will bear the costs of negative RSG so the Council 
is no longer required to make this payment.

3 GENERAL FUND BUDGET PROPOSALS

 Draft Budget Proposals

3.1 The overall General Fund position for 2019/20 is shown at table 2 below. The total service 
expenditure (net of direct income) for 2019/20 is estimated at £13.780m.  

 
Table 2 – Summary of General Fund Estimates - Indicative

Directorate 2018/19 
Adjusted 

Budget
£000

2019/20 
Original 
Budget

£000

2020/21 
Indicative 

Budget
£000

2021/22 
Indicative 

Budget
£000

Commercial 6,172 5,115 5,206 5,656
Growth 6,689 6,330 6,197 6,314
Resources 5,844 8,034 7,400 7,672
HRA Recharge 0 (2,470) (2,470) (2,470)
Net Cost of Service 18,705 17,009 16,333 17,172
Interest Payable and Receivable (198) 100 123 120
Minimum Revenue Provision 247 308 502 496
Depreciation (3,400) (3,637) (3,785) (4,190)
Parish Grant allocation - LCTSS 22 0 0 0
Net Budget Requirement 15,376 13,780 13,173 13,598
Capacity Bids 0 866 265 156
Savings and Efficiencies 0 (14) (14) (14)
Total Budget Requirement 15,376 14,632 13,424 13,740
Funding and Resources:
Council Tax (7,146) (7,475) (7,815) (8,170)
S31 Grants 0 (118) 0 0
Revenue Support Grant 0 0 98 0
Retained Business Rates (4,650) (4,594) (4,132) (3,974)
New Homes Bonus (2,086) (1,957) (1,576) (1,490)

12



Rural Grant 0 (295) 0 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 321 0 0 0
Return of Levy 0 (55) 0 0
Total Funding (13,561) (14,494) (13,425) (13,634)
Reserve Movement (1,815) (138) 863 1,016
Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 862 1,122
Cumulative (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 862 1,984

The table confirms that a balanced positon has been achieved for 2019/20 but the forecast 
for the following years shows the Council will be facing a deficit positon based on current 
budget proposals.  Uncertainty for these years is further compounded by the proposed 
changes in the national funding formula which is seeking to radically alter the methodology 
in how funding is allocated to local government having regard to national and local 
measures.  In order to meet these challenges, the Council is embarking on a corporate 
wide service review programme supported by a range of other initiatives and this is 
explained in further detail in section 3.3. 

3.2 Capacity proposals 

The budgetary proposals for 2019/20 include a number of new growth proposals that are 
designed to underpin the transformation and capacity building into priority areas of the 
Council.  The details of these are provided at Appendix A in more detail.

In order to enable these capacity proposals to be brought forward there has been a roots 
and branch review of core budgets to remove or reduce budgets that are no longer deemed 
necessary.  This fundamental review process has identified circa £900k in revenue budget 
reductions that has contributed to the financing of the capacity proposals outlined above.  In 
addition, a corporate savings target of £300k and transformation savings target of £200k 
have also been included across the three-year period. 

Table 3 – Savings
   

Directorate 2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Commercial 202 203 212
Growth 218 199 205
Resources 492 504 517
Total from review of budgets 912 906 934
Corporate savings target     0 300 300
Transformation savings 200 200 200
Total 1,112 1,406 1,434

3.3 Transformation 

Included within the budget proposals is an annual savings target of £200k and the Council 
will be embarking on a transformation programme focussing on intelligent automation to 
deliver these savings.  To complement this programme there are a number of other 
initiatives designed to increase efficiency and deliver longer term sustainable savings and 
improvements in performance management including:

 Digitisation
 Predictive analysis
 Operational improvements
 Service reviews

13



Over the coming weeks an implementation plan will be developed incorporating the themes 
above and will include all service areas.  The plan will identify the work activities, the 
required outcomes and the savings that are to be delivered.  This plan will be monitored 
and reported on during the year and where necessary correction action will be taken in 
order to ensure the budgeted outcomes are delivered.

3.4 It is also proposed to fund specific expenditure items from reserves and these are detailed 
at section 7.3.  The budget proposals include the continuation of the Community Fund 
(£150k) and Ward member grant scheme (£56k).  These have been funded by utilising the 
£42k balance on the community fund reserve with the balance of £164k built into 
mainstream financing to avoid the reliance on reserve funding.  As agreed at Cabinet on 1 
November 2018 the ward member grant scheme has been built into the 2019/20 proposals 
only with a mid-term review to assess its community impact.

3.5 Invest SK

There are proposed allocations included in the 2019/20 budget framework to support the 
Council’s wholly owned company InvestSK and these are detailed below:  

Table 4

2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Core Funding* 800 800 800
Arts & Heritage 350 350 350
Skills (capacity bid) 110 105 75
Economic 
Development

108 108 107

Total 1,368 1,363 1,332
*core funding includes the general running costs such as staffing, premises plus the funding 
of the visitor economy programme

3.6 Environment SK

The Council’s wholly owned company which is established primarily to deliver the grounds 
maintenance service in 2019/20 is proposed to receive the same level of funding as the 
outgoing contractor in order to deliver a like for like service.  The proposed allocation is 
shown below: 

Table 5 

2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Core Funding – General Fund 302 307 307
Core Funding – Housing Revenue Account 328 328 328
Core Funding – Special Expense Areas 318 328 328
Total 948 963 963

Budget Estimates – 2019/20

3.7   The budget has been compiled to deliver the outcomes and aspirations of the Council.  
There are a number of budget assumptions that have been considered and incorporated 
into the budget estimates and these are listed below:

Table 6 – General Fund Budget Assumptions

14



Cost Heading Assumption (%) £’000 – 
Financial 

impact
Retail Price Index 3.0 77
National Business Rate 3.0 21
Utility Costs 3.0 (average) 20
Drainage Board Levies Ranging from 2 – 3.0 18
Fuel Costs 3.0 18
Pay Award and incorporation  of 
national living wage

2.0 343

Interest Rates Income 1.2 (250)
Apprenticeship levy 0.5 58
Workforce Efficiency Target 3.5 (478)

3.8 These are budget assumptions that the Council annually anticipates and therefore they had 
been incorporated into the indicative 2019/20 budgets last year.  Upon review there have 
been no material changes to the assumptions built into the indicative budgets and therefore 
no new cost pressures have arisen.

3.9 Treasury Investment Income - the financial forecasts in respect of investment income over 
the next three years have been modelled on the following anticipated levels of interest rates 
(provided by the investment advisors).  However, it must be noted that the forecasts remain 
extremely volatile given the current uncertainty regarding the Brexit position and therefore 
are liable to change in the coming months: 

Table 7 – Treasury Investment Financial Forecasts

Financial Year 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Base Rate  1.25%  1.50%  2.00%
Investment Interest 
Rate 

 1.20%  1.50%  1.75%

3.10 This information has been utilised to anticipate the potential levels of interest income the 
Council will receive for its investment of the reserve balances.  This income will be shared 
between the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  Forecast interest 
rates available to the Council are shown in the table above and expected to generate an 
income of £250K to the General Fund and £219K to the HRA.  However, it should be noted 
that the forecast income can only be an estimate as it will be determined by the level of 
balances and the achievable interest rates over the financial year.

Council Tax Proposals

3.11 The proposed draft budget proposals for 2019/20 is calculated based on the options 
available for Council tax setting:

Table 8 – Council Tax options

2019/20 options
£5 increase 

(3.25%) £158.62 
Band D

3% increase 
£158.22
 Band D

No increase 
£153.62 
Band D

SFA (settlement 
funding assessment)

£3.610m £3.610m £3.610m

Council Tax level x 
47,125.70** (inc. 

£7.475m* £7.456m* £7.239m*

15



2019/20 options
SEA*)

SKDC Total (inc. 
SEA)

£11.085m £11.066m £10.849m

£M difference to £5 
increase

0 £19k £236k

*SEA – Special expense area
** Council Tax base

3.12 It is important to highlight the impact on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan should 
the deal to increase not be continued in 2019/20 by the Council.  This is shown in the table 
below.  The cumulative effect of freezing council tax in 2019/20 would be a loss of income 
over £1.290m over a 5 year period.

Table 9

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Cumulative 
total

1 year freeze 
and then 3%

£7.239m £7.568m £7.912m £8.272m £8.648m

£5 increase and 
then 3%

£7.475m £7.814m £8.170m £8.541m £8.929m

Difference £0.235m £0.246m £0.258m £0.269m £0.281m £1.290m

3.13 The budget proposals for 2019/20 have been compiled on the assumption that the Cabinet 
would wish to recommend a £5 increase for 2019/20 in order to take advantage of the 
limited availability of the higher level (without the need for a referendum).  This assumption 
has been included in the Medium Term Financial Plan.  However, should a lesser amount 
be proposed then the following options would require consideration:

 Removal of growth built into the budget proposals proportionate to the financial 
difference

 Increase in savings, efficiencies and/or income to offset the reduction in Council tax 
income.  Any new proposals under this heading would require careful consideration 
to ensure they are resilient to be delivered

 A one-off reserve movement to offset the financial difference.  This would be a one-
off solution only to avoid an ongoing dependency of reserve needed to fund budget 
proposals

Consultation in respect of Council Tax options for 2019/20 will be launched in January and 
the results will be fed back to Cabinet at their February meeting.

4. FEES AND CHARGES

4.1 The draft fees and charges proposals for 2019/20, which are set out in Appendix B, have 
been compiled and are discussed below in more detail for consideration by this Committee.

4.2 The Council provides a wide range of services for which it is able to make a charge – either 
under statutory powers (set by the Government) or discretionary (set by the Council). 
Further definitions of the two main categories of charge are detailed below:

Statutory Charges – the majority of charges are set nationally and local authorities have 
little or no opportunity to control them. The income received from these charges is 
important as it contributes to the overall financial position of the Authority.  However, 

16



income cannot be assumed to increase in line with other fees and charges set by the 
Council. Also included under this heading are a few areas where the service is statutory or 
established by local by-law but the charges have a discretionary element.

Discretionary Charges – By definition, these are for discretionary services where local 
authorities can make their own decisions on setting the level of charges. Accordingly, when 
setting these fees and charges, the Council’s approach should be clear and in line with the 
corporate priorities.

 
A summary of the proposed fees and charges for 2019/20 are shown in the table below:

Table 10

HEADING PROPOSED 19/20 FEE EFFECTIVE DATE 
CHANGE (OR LAST 
INCREASE DATE)

Car parking charges No increase 01/04/2010
Car parking penalty charge 
notices

No increase 01/04/2013

Bus stations No increase 01/04/2014
Building control charges No increase 01/02/2017
Markets No increase 01/04/2016
Arts Centres Mainly inflation increase 01/04/2019
Green waste No increase 01/04/2018
Supply of new or replacement 
bins

No increase 01/04/2016

Domestic refuse collection e.g. 
bulky waste

No increase 01/04/2015

MOT Fees No increase 01/04/2010
Fees for Scrap Metal dealers, 
tattooing, acupuncture, control 
of dogs, caravan parks etc

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Houses of Multiple occupancy, 
Immigration inspections, 
contaminated land enquiries & 
Sampling of water supplies

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Smoke free fixed penalty notices 
and smoke and carbon 
monoxide alarms for landlords

No increase 01/04/2016

Letting Agents Redress Scheme No increase 01/04/2017
Hygiene food safety, packs and 
energy efficiency standards

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Air Quality No increase 01/04/2017
Hackney Carriage, Animal 
licenses and sex establishments 
etc

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Alcohol licensing No increase 24/11/2005
Bingo premises, betting 
premises etc

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Gambling Licensing- Gaming 
machines and lottery licenses

No increase 31/01/2007

Fixed Penalty Notices- Nuisance 
parking/ Waste Transfer Offence 
etc

Maximum penalty as per 
regulations – no increase

01/04/2017 & 
01/04/2018

Fixed Penalty Notices – 
Littering/Fly posting

Default penalty as per 
regulations – no increase

01/04/2018

17



HEADING PROPOSED 19/20 FEE EFFECTIVE DATE 
CHANGE (OR LAST 
INCREASE DATE)

Outdoor recreation Inflation increase 01/04/2019
Cemetery charges Inflation increase 01/04/2019
Local Land Charge fees Inflation increase on land 

charges, CON29R increased 
to match other local 
authorities

01/04/2019

Planning fees set by 
Government

No increase 17/01/2018

Planning and pre-planning 
charges set locally

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Community rooms & guest 
rooms

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

5. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)

5.1 The draft proposals for the HRA enable key areas of activity to be carried out including:

 Letting homes, managing and supporting tenancies
 Engaging and involving tenants in service delivery
 Continuing investment in the housing stock 
 Providing a timely and effective responsive repairs service
 Continuing to improve the energy efficiency of the stock and attracting external funding
 Ongoing investment in improving access to sheltered schemes and   communal areas 

of accommodation
 Acquisition and development of additional homes within the HRA

5.2 As part of the budget formation there are a number of additional items of expenditure and 
these are detailed as;

 The post of Assistant Chief Executive for Housing Delivery as approved by the 
Employment Committee on 13 November 2018.   This new post is identified as being 
pivotal to supporting the delivery of the Council’s housing growth ambitions by utilising 
it’s role as a major social landlord and by also engaging with other housing providers to 
develop strategic partnering opportunities.  To support this ambition a proposed annual 
budget of £500K is incorporated into base budgets from 2019/20.

 An increase in the HRA proportionate share of central support and democratic costs of 
£297k to reflect increased activity in respect of communications and public relations, 
transformation and innovation and customer facing services.

5.3 The Housing Revenue Account has continued its track record of delivering savings and 
efficiencies whilst ensuring that resources are allocated to front line services and delivering 
strategic outcomes.  Further savings have been identified as part of the 2019/20 budget 
setting. These are shown below:

  
Table 11 – Savings & Efficiencies

Heading Details £000
Improvements and Merger of Housing Improvements and Repairs team, 100

18



Repairs resulting in reduction of staff costs due to realignment of 
posts and roles.

Housing Management Reduction of staffing costs due to realignment of roles. 50

Total  150

Housing Revenue Account 2019/2020 – Rent Proposals

5.4 The main element of policy relating to the HRA for 2019/20 is the setting of rents. The 
Council’s policy prior to the Chancellor’s announcements in the summer 2015 was to keep 
in line with the Government’s guidance on rent restructuring seeing annual increases of 
CPI+1% following rent convergence being achieved.  Government has required all social 
landlords to reduce their rents by 1% every year starting in 2016/17 for four years rather 
than previous policy of CPI +1%.  Therefore the 2019/20 budgets have been compiled on 
this premise with rental budgets reverting back to previous rent setting guidance from 
2020/21 onwards.   

5.5 This decrease in rent will see the annual budgeted rental income reducing from £24.439M 
in 2018/19 to £24.408M in 2019/20.  For 2019/20 the average weekly rental decrease for 
individual property will be £0.81.  The average rent in 2019/20 will be £77.62 with a 
minimum of £51.48 and a maximum of £119.77.  Garage rents are proposed to increase in 
line with inflation (2.5%) and service charges are proposed to increase in accordance with 
the fees and charges shown at Appendix C.  Further analysis of rent details are provided 
below:

Rent Summary –1% rent reduction

Table 12

Average rent Per Week (£) £77.62
Average decrease Per Week (£) £0.81
Average decrease Per Week (%) 1%

Impact – 1% decrease

Table 13

Bedrooms
 
 
 

% of
Dwelling

Stock
 

Average
Weekly

Rent
2018/19

Average
Weekly

Rent
2019/20

Average
Decrease

 
 

% 
Decrease

 
 
 

Bedsit 0.50% £55.18 £54.75 £0.43 1%
1 Bedroom 12.59% £67.53 £66.80 £0.73 1%
2 Bedrooms 42.19% £75.93 £75.17 £0.76 1%
3 Bedrooms 42.69% £83.75 £82.94 £0.81 1%
4 Bedrooms 1.98% £88.65 £87.79 £0.86 1%
6 Bedrooms 0.05% n/a £112.75 - -

Decreases for Individuals

Table 14

Bracket Number Of 
Properties % Of Properties

Under £0.66 310 5.14%

19



£0.66 - £0.85 4,712 78.19%
£0.86 - £1.05 1,000 16.59%
£1.06 - £1.25 5 0.08%
Total 6,027 100.00%

5.6 In addition to using the 1% rent reduction in setting the budget for rental income for future 
years further assumptions have been made.  Void rent assumptions will be budgeted at 
1.5% although during the current year this is closer to 1.0% thus gaining an additional £25k 
in collectable income.  Given the volatility of the void rate it is considered prudent to budget 
at 1.2% for 2019/20 rather than the current 1.0% that is being achieved.  Right to buy 
assumptions are set at 50 with the current year projected to be 60 sales. 
 

6.      CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 - 2021/22 

6.1 The capital programme has been formulated to reflect the priorities of the Council by 
providing the resources to support the delivery of the Grantham cinema project, investment 
in the Council’s assets and continuing to invest in fleet to support key services including 
Street Scene.  A summarised capital programme is shown below and a detailed capital 
programme included in Appendix C (General Fund) and Appendix D (Housing Revenue 
Account).

Table 15

Directorate 2018/19 
Slippage
£000

2019/20 
Updated 
Base £000

2019/20 
Original
Budget 
£000

2020/21 
Indicative 
Budget £000

2021/22 
Indicative 
Budget £000

Commercial 1,973 1,973 1633 1841
Growth 1,479 10,462 11,941 50 0
Resources 65 235 300 0 0
Total Budget 1,544 12,670 14,214 1,683 1,841
Financing:
Borrowing (10,000)
Capital Receipts (500) (400) (100)
Grants (862) (797) (797)
Reserves (2,852) (486) (944)
Total 
Financing

(14,214) (1,683) (1,841)

6.2 The Council is committed to helping grow the local economy for the benefit of all residents 
in the district, both by supporting private sector activity and, where necessary, intervening 
more directly. The Council has various routes to do this, including through DeliverSK, an 
investment partnership set-up to manage the delivery of physical growth and regeneration 
in South Kesteven; through Gravitas, the Council’s housing-focussed company and via 
direct investment.  

6.3 The capital strategy over the medium term will be focussed on delivery through the 
acquisition, facilitation and development of strategic sites and buildings to stimulate inward 
investment and regeneration. This will lead to the creation of jobs and economic growth.  
Different opportunities will bring a different range of risks and types of return.  There are 
potential local economic and social returns as well as capital and income returns. The 
strategic aim will be to create a balanced portfolio with clear investment or regeneration 
objectives. The supporting business case will develop these criteria in more detail to enable 
an informed decision to be taken. Risks will be managed through a rigorous and 
independent appraisal process.

20



6.4 To enable this, the capital programme includes an allocation of £10m for 2019/20.  The 
associated borrowing will be financed in the short term from the Regeneration Reserve on 
the basis that the asset will be sold within a defined period (ordinarily no more than 3 years 
but with flexibility depending on the business case) in order to repay the borrowing and re-
invest any profit gain into future acquisitions.  As an approximation based on current 
borrowing costs, for every £1m borrowed, there is a £20k Minimum Revenue Provision cost 
(over a 50-year period) and a £30k interest cost (over a 30 year period).   The governance 
of this proposal is being developed in more detail in the Investment and Regeneration 
strategy which will be presented to Cabinet in February with the budget report and will set 
out the approach and criteria to be considered in making decisions about capital 
investment.  

6.5 Alongside this ambition, the capital programme includes investment in infrastructure that is 
vital to maintaining the delivery of quality services such as replacement of vehicles, 
maintenance of assets and ICT investment.  

Housing Investment Programme (HIP) 

6.6 The formation of the capital programme for the period 2019/20 – 2021/22 is focussed on 
the continuation of the new build and stock acquisition programme and the objectives of the 
HRA Business Plan.  This will continue to deliver investment into the housing stock through 
a range of programmes including kitchen and bathroom, re-roofing and external wall 
insulation.

Table 16

2018/19 
Slippage
£000

2019/20 
Updated 
Base £000

2019/20 
Original
Budget 
£000

2020/21 
Indicative 
Budget £000

2021/22 
Indicative 
Budget £000

HRA Budget 2,225 14,264 16,489 15,113 13,796
Financing:
Borrowing (2,775)
Capital Receipts (5,270) (1,200) (500)
Reserves (11,219 (13,913 (10,521)
Total 
Financing

(16,489) (15,113) (13,796)

6.7 In order to accelerate the ambitions of the HRA and to deliver a stepped increase in the 
new build programme, it is proposed to include in the programme a significant allocation of 
£15M capital expenditure over the period of the programme in order for the HRA to procure 
strategic sites across the district where there is an identified need for housing development.  
In order to finance this ambition, it is necessary to divert resources away from the loan 
repayment reserve which is budgeted to have a balance of £16.35M as at 31 March 2018.  
This proposal will therefore require the Council to re-finance the £25M maturity loan which 
is currently due for full repayment on 27 March 2020.

  
7. RESERVES AND BALANCES

7.1 Reserves are held for three main purposes:

 To ensure the Council has sufficient funds available to meet its cash flow requirements and 
avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of the working balance

21



 To protect services against unforeseen events that have a financial consequence and are 
not included in the budget framework – this forms part of the working balance

 A means of building up funds to meet known or predicted liabilities –these are known as 
earmarked reserves

7.2 Working Balance

The Council maintains a working balance in order to meet unforeseen expenditure that may 
arise during the year that is not included in the annual budget framework.  The proposed 
level is set at 16.5% of net operating service expenditure which is slightly higher that the 
guidance level of 15% and reflects the volatility of the expenditure for 2019/20 given the 
uncertainty of external pressures.
 

7.3 Earmarked Reserves

Earmarked reserves are used as a means of building up funds to meet known or predicted 
liabilities. The proposed movements built into the budget proposals are shown below:

Table 17

Reserve Heading 2019/20 
£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

Events and Festivals (93) 0 0
Regeneration 
Reserve

(718) (417) (369)

New Homes Bonus 
income

1,957 1,576 1,490

Building Control 31 41 23
Invest to Save (168) (101) (101)
Pensions (933) (192) (60)
Special Expense 49 49 49
ICT reserve (112) (22) (22)
Member training and 
development 

(11) 0 (1)

Grants (313) (71) 7
Local Priorities 
Reserve

215 0 0

Community Fund (42) 0 0
Total Transfer 
to/(from) reserves

(138) 863 1,016

The current forecast balances and the proposed movements over the next three year 
period are shown at Appendix E.  The main forecast movements in 2019/20 are 
summarised below.

 Events and Festivals reserve has been utilised to contribute towards the festivals 
that will take place over the district. Over the period of the budget proposals the 
forecast spend is £93k.

 The regeneration reserve has been utilised over the period of the budget to finance 
the borrowing costs associated with the regeneration capital bid included in the 
capital programme.  It is proposed that the balance on this reserve is increased by 

22



transferring £1m from the Local Priorities Reserve as this will ensure that the 
balance is sufficient to contribute towards the borrowing costs.

 New Homes Bonus totalling £5.023m is transferred to the Local Priorities Reserve 
over the period of the 3 year budget.  It is proposed that £3.368m of this reserve is 
used to finance the capital programme which includes £1.4m funding for Gravitas 
carried forwards from 2018/19.

 Invest to Save reserve has been utilised to fund the transformation and innovation 
team to support the delivery of the agreed savings and to develop new initiatives for 
both commercial and efficient ways of working going forward.  

 The Pensions reserve has been fully utilised to financially support the employer 
contributions that the Council makes in respect of the employees that are members 
of the Local Government pension scheme.  This follows the current policy of a 1% 
reduction in the employer rates at service budget level and making the 
corresponding contribution from the reserve.  From 2020/21 it is proposed to revert 
back to budgeting the cost at service level.

 Both Grantham and Langtoft Special Expense reserves will be utilised over the 
period of the budget proposals.  In respect of Grantham this will be to support the 
expenditure costs of future capital projects and Langtoft reserve will be reduced 
over the next 3 years to contribute towards the operational costs of the SEA 
resulting in a reduced cost to those residents over the same period.

 ICT reserve – the reserve is budgeted to be utilised to fund specific one-off projects 
during the year including the acquisition of new ICT equipment for members 
following the May local election.

 Member training – one-off funding to support member training and development 
following the May local election.

 Grants – these relate to an allocation of £200k towards the progression of the 
garden village planning application, £76k planning delivery and individual electoral 
registration.

 Community Fund reserve balance of £42k has contributed towards the continuing 
community scheme of £150k with the balance mainstreamed into the 2019/20 
revenue budget. 

 At the time of compiling the report it is not yet confirmed the level of funds that will 
be required from the Business Rates and Council Tax volatility reserve to support 
any Collection Fund deficit as the calculation is required to be undertaken on a 
legislative prescribed date.  However in order to ensure there is no adverse impact 
on the Council tax payer any forecast deficits will be offset with a movement from 
this reserve in line with the policy.

7.4 In respect of the HRA, there are a number of specific reserves to assist in the delivery of 
the HRA Strategy and are used to fund both revenue and capital expenditure.  In addition 
the HRA has a specific working balance which provides financial support to the HRA should 
any significant unforeseen costs arise during the financial year.   The Major Repairs 
Reserve is the primary source of funding for the HRA capital programme and is proposed to 
be utilised to fund the investment in the housing stock over the next 5 years.  As previously 
referenced it is proposed to re-direct funds from the loan repayment reserve in order to 
provide financial support to an ambitious acquisition programme to support new build and 
stock growth.  Further detail of the HRA reserves can be found in Appendix D.

23



8. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 The budget setting process is set out at 1.2 above

9. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 This are considered within the report.

10. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 
the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Financial risks The draft budget proposals include a 

number of savings targets that will be 
managed and monitored during the year. 

11. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

11.1 N/a

12. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

12.1 N/a

13. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

13.1 These are considered throughout the report.

14. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

14.1 The recommendations relate to proposals for the budget which forms part of the budgetary 
and policy framework. Members must consult with the community on the proposals 
contained within this report as required in accordance with statutory regulation and 
constitutional requirements. 

15. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

15.1 The budget setting process is set out at 1.2 above

16. APPENDICES

Appendix A – Capacity Bids – General Fund (GF)
Appendix B – Fees & Charges – GF and Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Appendix C – Capital & Reserves Statement – GF 
Appendix D – Capital & Reserves Statement – HRA

17. BACKGROUND PAPERS

17.1 None

24



2019/20  - 2021/22 Capacity Bids

Description
2019/20
Impact
£000

One off/
Recurring

Responsible
Cabinet Member

Recurring
Replacement website 32.5 £7.5k recurring Cllr Cooke
Replacement of intranet 19 £4k recurring Cllr Cooke
Closed churchyards 15 recurring Cllr Cooke
Play area improvements 30 recurring Cllr Cooke
Annual staff survey 10 recurring Cllr Cooke
Server and storage infrastructure 22 recurring Cllr Cooke
Estates surveyor post 29 recurring Cllr Cooke
Member services research and support assistant 29 recurring Cllr Cooke
Cabinet, members and development assistant 13(net) recurring Cllr Cooke
Fuel price increase 75 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Vehicle maintenance cost increase 34 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Pool car keyless entry system 26 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Biodiversity project along River Witham 60 recurring Cllr Robins
Parks community engagement and events officer 19 recurring Cllr Robins
Growing and retaining our talent programme (Invest SK funding) 110 recurring Cllr Smith

One-off
Land acquisition revenue costs 258 One off Cllr Cooke
Replacement of members ICT equipment 38.5 One off Cllr Cooke
Members training and development 11 One off Cllr Cooke
New market at Market Deeping – set up costs 10 One off Cllr Robins
Car park enforcement cost increase 25 One off Cllr Robins
TOTAL 866

25

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

CAR PARKS - GRANTHAM 

1 SHORT STAY (EXCEPT WHARF ROAD)

Up to 30 mins 01/04/2010 0.50 0.50 Included
Up to 1 hour 01/04/2010 0.80 0.80 Included
Up to 2 hours 01/04/2010 1.30 1.30 Included
Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included
Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included
Over 4 hours 01/04/2010 4.00 4.00 Included

SHORT STAY Wharf Road Grantham

Up to 30 mins 01/04/2010 0.50 0.50 Included
Up to 1 hour 01/04/2010 0.80 0.80 Included
Up to 2 hours 01/04/2010 1.30 1.30 Included
Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included
Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 6.00 6.00 Included
Over 4 hours 01/04/2010 8.00 8.00 Included

2 LONG STAY 

Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included
Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 2.50 2.50 Included
All day 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included

3 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS
 (Monday to Friday)
Per quarter 01/04/2010 99.00 99.00 Included
Per 6 months 01/04/2010 190.00 190.00 Included

4 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS
 (Monday to Saturday)
Per quarter 01/04/2010 120.00 120.00 Included
Per 6 months 01/04/2010 230.00 230.00 Included

Season Ticket Discount Offer Purchase Additional Tickets Free
4 1
8 2

15 5

5 PENALTY CHARGE NOTICES
Failure to display 01/04/2013 70.00 70.00 O/Scope
Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 35.00 35.00 O/Scope

Parking for longer etc 01/04/2013 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

27

Appendix B



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

CAR PARKS - STAMFORD

1 SHORT STAY

Up to 30 mins 01/04/2010 0.50 0.50 Included
Up to 1 hour 01/04/2010 0.80 0.80 Included
Up to 2 hours 01/04/2010 1.30 1.30 Included
Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included
Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included
Over 4 hours 01/04/2010 4.00 4.00 Included

2 LONG STAY
Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included
Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 2.50 2.50 Included
All day 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included

3 COACH PARKING (ALL DAY)
Cattle Market 01/04/2010 10.00 10.00 Included

4 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS
 (Monday to Friday)
Per quarter 01/04/2010 99.00 99.00 Included
Per 6 months 01/04/2010 190.00 190.00 Included

5 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS
 (Monday to Saturday)
Per quarter 01/04/2010 120.00 120.00 Included
Per 6 months 01/04/2010 230.00 230.00 Included

Season Ticket Discount Offer Purchase Additional Tickets Free
4 1
8 2

15 5

6 PENALTY CHARGE NOTICES
Failure to display 01/04/2013 70.00 70.00 O/Scope
Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 35.00 35.00 O/Scope

Parking for longer etc 01/04/2013 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

28



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

BUS STATION - GRANTHAM

1 Per Departure 01/04/2014 0.77 0.77 Included

2 Minimum Charge
1-75 departures per annum 01/04/2014 51.00 51.00 Included

BUS STATION - STAMFORD

3 Per Departure 01/04/2014 0.77 0.77 Included

4 Minimum Charge
1-75 departures per annum 01/04/2014 51.00 51.00 Included

BUS STATION - BOURNE

5 Per Departure 01/04/2014 0.77 0.77 Included

6 Minimum Charge
1-75 departures per annum 01/04/2014 51.00 51.00 Included

29



Appendix B

Building Control - Detail

Category of work

Full Plans Application Building Notice Applications

Plan Charge Building Notice Charge

Net Charge
£

VAT
£

Gross
Charge £

Net Charge
£

VAT
£

Gross
Charge £

Extension or loft conversion where the floor area
does not exceed 10m2 290.00 58.00 348.00 290.00 58.00 348.00

Extension or loft conversion where floor area
exceeds 10m2 but does not exceed 30m2 380.00 76.00 456.00 380.00 76.00 456.00

Extension or loft conversion where the floor area
exceeds 30m2 but does not exceed 80m2 490.00 98.00 588.00 490.00 98.00 588.00

Erection or extension of a domestic garage or
carport up to 60m2 290.00 58.00 348.00 290.00 58.00 348.00

Conversion of a domestic garage into a habitable
room(s) 245.00 49.00 294.00 245.00 49.00 294.00

Renovation of a thermal element to a single existing
dwelling (eg Re-roofing, Re-plastering, Floor/Wall

Insulation)
200.00 40.00 240.00 200.00 40.00 240.00

Replacement of windows in domestic dwelling
(individual quote for commercial) 165.00 33.00 198.00 165.00 33.00 198.00

Electrical work involving the complete re-wiring of an
exisiting dwelling 415.00 83.00 498.00 415.00 83.00 498.00

Installation of Controlled Fittings such as heating
system, PV panels, solar heating systems and other

such alternative systems
200.00 40.00 240.00 200.00 40.00 240.00

Work for which the estimated cost is up to £2,000
200.00 40.00 240.00 200.00 40.00 240.00

Work for which the estimated cost is over £2,000
and up to £5,000 260.00 52.00 312.00 260.00 52.00 312.00

Forming a single structural opening
125.00 25.00 150.00 125.00 50.00 150.00

For any work not covered in the above table, please contact us on 01476 406187 or e-mail
bcontrol@southkesteven.gov.uk for a quotation.

30



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

BUILDING CONTROL CHARGES

1 Administration Charges
Enquiries & searching of historic records  within 20
working days 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 O/Scope

Enquiries & searching of historic records within 48 hours 01/02/2017 90.00 90.00 O/Scope

Copy of completion certificate - within 20 working days 01/02/2017 30.00 30.00 O/Scope

Copy of completion certificate - within 1 working day 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 O/Scope

Copy of notice of decision - within 20 working days 01/02/2017 30.00 30.00 O/Scope

Copy of notice of decision - within 1 working day 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 O/Scope
First issue of Completion Certificates 01/02/2017 75.00 75.00 O/Scope
Exemption Confirmation Letter 01/02/2017 45.00 45.00 O/Scope
Responses to Professional Letters for Commercial
Purposes 01/02/2017 75.00 75.00 O/Scope

2 Additional Inspection Charges

Additional inspections for quality of building works
including help with snagging list

01/04/2015
20% of

original
charge

20% of
original
charge 

Included

3 Other Charges
Pre-application advice - 1st hour free, thereafter, hourly
rate applies 01/02/2017 45.00 45.00 Included
SAP and EPC Charges 01/02/2017 180.00 180.00 Included
Domestic structural design 01/02/2017 156.00 156.00 Included

Administration charge for dangerous structures,
withdrawn applications, historic buildings etc. (per hour) 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 Included
Fire Risk Assessments 01/02/2017 POA POA Included
Demolition Notice 01/02/2017 360.00 120.00 O/Scope

31



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

MARKETS - GRANTHAM & MARKET DEEPING

1 Standard Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2012 21.50 21.50 Exempt
Standard Casual Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2015 24.30 24.30 Exempt

2 Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2012 20.00 20.00 Exempt
Casual Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2015 21.20 21.20 Exempt
Hot food & drinks units 01/04/2015 24.30 24.30 Exempt

3 Vehicles parked for storage
Cars and light vans 01/04/2015 6.60 6.60 Included
Large vehicles 01/04/2015 10.10 10.10 Included

MARKETS - STAMFORD

4 Standard Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 23.85 23.85 Exempt
Standard Casual Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 27.30 27.30 Exempt

5 Pitch (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 21.30 21.30 Exempt
Casual Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2016 24.15 24.15 Exempt
Hot food & drinks units 01/04/2016 27.30 27.30 Exempt

6 Craft fair - Table 01/04/2016 25.15 25.15 Exempt

7 Craft fair - Stall 01/04/2016 30.45 30.45 Exempt

8 Vehicles parked for storage
Cars and light vans 01/04/2016 6.80 6.80 Included
Large vehicles 01/04/2016 10.45 10.45 Included

MARKETS - BOURNE

9 Standard Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 19.30 19.30 Exempt
Standard Casual Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 21.00 21.00 Exempt

10 Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2016 16.25 16.25 Exempt
Casual Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2016 16.75 16.75 Exempt
Hot food & drinks units 01/04/2016 21.00 21.00 Exempt

11 Vehicles parked for storage
Cars and light vans 01/04/2016 6.90 6.90 Included
Large vehicles 01/04/2016 10.45 10.45 Included

12 Hire of stall for private function (collection only)* 01/04/2016 11.05 11.05 Exempt

13 FOR ALL MARKETS
Farmers market - supply of stall cover 01/04/2007 1.00 1.00 Exempt
in addition to standard stall charge
Fruit and Veg Excessive Waste Surcharge (per stall) 01/04/2016 5.30 5.30 Included

* any associated costs with delivery and set up will be charged accordingly

32



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

STAGED PERFORMANCES
The theatres and ballrooms are available for hire for theatrical productions, concerts,

lectures, demonstrations, films and other performing arts events. Prices are below:

1 Guildhall Arts Centre, Grantham
Theatre Hire
Performances - Commercial 01/04/2019 315.00 324.00 Exempt
Performances - Non Profit making 01/04/2019 252.00 259.00 Exempt
Dress rehearsals 01/04/2019 199.00 204.00 Exempt
Rehearsals (incl tech) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt
Lecture/demonstrations (Daytime) 01/04/2019 93.00 95.00 Exempt
Lecture/demonstrations (Evening) 01/04/2019 204.00 210.00 Exempt
Set up charge/technical support (max. 8 hours) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt

2 Stamford Arts Centre
Theatre Hire
Performances - Commercial 01/04/2019 333.00 343.00 Exempt
Performances - Non Profit making 01/04/2019 279.00 287.00 Exempt
Dress rehearsals 01/04/2019 199.00 204.00 Exempt
Rehearsals (incl tech) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt
Lecture/demonstrations (Daytime) 01/04/2019 93.00 95.00 Exempt
Lecture/demonstrations (Evening) 01/04/2019 204.00 210.00 Exempt
Set up charge/technical support (max. 8 hours) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt
Technical surcharge per hire 01/04/2019 55.00 56.50 Exempt

3 Bourne Corn Exchange
Theatre Hire - Main Hall
Performances 01/04/2019 120.00 123.50 Exempt
Dress Rehearsals 01/04/2019 94.00 96.50 Exempt
Rehearsals 01/04/2019 78.00 80.00 Exempt
Set up charge/technical support (max. 8 hours) 01/04/2019 120.00 123.00 Exempt

Performers Rights Society charges may be applicable in addition to the above rates

Hire conditions are available giving details of equipment and support offered; quotations provided on request.

33



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £
WEDDING RECEPTIONS, PARTIES AND OTHER ROOM HIRE

All three venues are available for wedding parties and similar functions. Packages are
available to include provision of bars and catering. Prices are below.

4 Guildhall Arts Centre, Grantham

Casually let rooms (per hour)
Ballroom - hourly day rate up to 6pm 01/04/2016 33.50 33.50 Exempt
Ballroom - hourly evening rate 6 to 11pm - meetings & workshops 01/04/2019 55.00 33.50 Exempt
Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm parties 01/04/2019 299.00 307.00 Exempt
Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm concerts 01/04/2019 239.00 245.00 Exempt
Ballroom - (all day) Wedding rate 01/04/2019 465.00 477.50 Exempt
Ballroom - (all day) Wedding rate including setting
up charge previous evening 01/04/2019 770.00 790.00 Exempt
Use of ballroom kitchen per day 01/04/2016 55.00 55.00 Exempt

Meeting rooms (per hour)
Newton room 01/04/2016 27.50 27.50 Exempt
Studio 4* 01/04/2018 15.00 15.00 Exempt

5 Bourne Corn Exchange

Casually let rooms
Main hall - hourly rate 01/04/2019 36.55 37.50 Exempt
Main hall - Friday or Saturday whole evening 01/04/2019 271.00 279.00 Exempt
6pm-12pm incl prem rate
Main hall - (all day) 9am to 12pm excluding kitchen 01/04/2019 426.30 439.00 Exempt
Kitchen hire (use of kitchen area excluding equip)* 01/04/2019 64.95 67.00 Exempt
Kitchen hire (full use of kitchen and equipment
including crockery and cutlery etc)* 01/04/2019 121.80 125.50 Exempt
Room set up or clear down (as per hourly rate or
part thereof) 01/04/2019 36.55 37.50 Exempt
Room set up or clear down after midnght (as per
hourly rate or part thereof) 01/04/2019 51.75 53.00 Exempt

6 Stamford Arts Centre
Casually let rooms (per hour)
Ballroom - hourly day rate up to 6pm 01/04/2016 33.50 33.50 Exempt
Ballroom - hourly evening rate 6 to 11pm - meetings & workshops 01/04/2019 55.00 33.50 Exempt
Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm - parties 01/04/2019 455.00 467.50 Exempt
Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm - concerts 01/04/2019 343.00 352.50 Exempt
Function ballroom/Blue room - all day wedding rate 01/04/2019 837.00 862.00 Exempt
Function ballroom/Blue room - wedding rate
including setting up charge previous evening 01/04/2019 1243.00 1280.00 Exempt

Meeting rooms - per hour
Blue Room* 01/04/2018 17.50 17.50 Exempt
Rehearsal* 01/04/2018 15.00 15.00 Exempt
Ireson/Burghley/Exeter Room 01/04/2018 12.00 12.00 Exempt

Additional cleaning for social functions 01/04/2019 60.00 61.80 Included

*access to kitchen up to 4 hours prior to event start time, additional earlier access will
incur additional hourly rate of £10

Performers Right Society charges may be applicable in addition to the above rates
Room Hire

The Fees & charges above are listed as guide prices- Please call your respective arts centre for a specific hire quotation

34



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

1 Green Waste
Delivery of Green bin (or bins to same address) 01/04/2012 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
Provision of green bin (all new or additional bins) 01/04/2010 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
Annual collection charge (first bin) - Paid by telephone or face to
face (not direct debit) 01/04/2018 35.00 35.00 O/Scope

Annual collection charge (first bin) - Paid online or by direct debit 01/04/2018 32.00 32.00 O/Scope
Annual collection charge (each subsequent bin) - Paid by telephone
or face to face (not direct debit) 01/04/2016 16.50 16.50 O/Scope
Annual collection charge (each subsequent bin) - Paid online or by
direct debit 01/04/2016 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

2 Other street care charges
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
Additional Silver recycling bin 01/04/2010 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
Additional clear recycling sacks (pack of 15) 01/04/2010 1.25 1.25 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged 240 ltr wheelie bins* 01/04/2010 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged 140 ltr wheelie bins* 01/04/2016 15.00 15.00 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged 180 ltr wheelie bins* 01/04/2016 17.00 17.00 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged wheels and axles* 01/04/2010 20.00 20.00 O/Scope
Replacement of bin lid pegs* 01/04/2010 5.00 5.00 O/Scope

3 Additional bins for Landlords ( subject to qualifying criteria)
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
240 ltr bin 01/04/2016 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
360 ltr bin 01/04/2016 49.00 49.00 O/Scope
660 ltr bin 01/04/2016 116.00 116.00 O/Scope
1100 ltr bin 01/04/2016 149.00 149.00 O/Scope

4 Replacement (additional capacity) bins for Families (subject to qualifying criteria)
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
360 ltr bin 01/04/2016 49.00 49.00 O/Scope
660 ltr bin 01/04/2016 116.00 116.00 O/Scope
1100 ltr bin 01/04/2016 149.00 149.00 O/Scope

5 Developers charge for new developments
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
Set of bins (1 black 240 ltr & 1 silver 240 ltr) 01/04/2016 52.00 52.00 O/Scope

6 Domestic refuse collection
Bulk household items - first item 01/04/2015 12.00 12.00 O/Scope
 - each additional item 01/04/2015 6.00 6.00 O/Scope
White Goods collection 01/04/2015 12.00 12.00 O/Scope
Piano collection 01/04/2015 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
Ad Hoc Bulky collections (non standard items) - to be assessed by
Supervisor, charged appropriately

7 Private street cleansing 01/04/2010 Based on cost recovery

8 Commercial waste collections (including bulky items) - please
contact us by email; waste@southkesteven.gov.uk for a quotation 01/04/2016

*Where bins have been damaged by the resident

35



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

MOT Testing

1 Classes 1 and 2
Motorcycles 01/04/2010 29.65 29.65 O/Scope
Motorcycles with sidecar 01/04/2010 37.80 37.80 O/Scope

2 Class 4
Cars (up to 8 passenger seats) and motor caravans 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope
Quads (max unladen weight 400kg - for goods
vehicles 550kg and max net power 15kw) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope
Dual purpose vehicles 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope
Private hire vehicles and PSVs (up to 8 seats) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope
Goods vehicles (up to 3,000 kg DGW) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope
Ambulances and Taxis (Taxis and private hire
vehicles may be subject to additional local
requirements) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope
Private passenger vehicles and ambulances (9-12
Passenger Seats) 01/04/2010 57.30 57.30 O/Scope

3 Class 7
Goods vehicles (over 3,000kg up to 3,500kg DGW) 01/04/2010 58.60 58.60 O/Scope

NOTES
These are the maximum fees chargeable in accordance with Vehicle and Operator Standards Agency

36



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

1 Premise/Business registration fees
Acupuncture 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Tattooing 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Electrolysis 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Cosmetic piercing 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Semi permanent skin colouring 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Additional activities (eg cosmetic piercing and
tattooing) per activity 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Amendment or replacement certificate 01/04/2019 22.45 23.00 O/Scope

2 Personal registration fees (Per activity)
Acupuncture 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Tattooing 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Electrolysis 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Cosmetic piercing 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Semi permanent skin colouring 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Amendment or replacement certificate 01/04/2019 22.45 23.00 O/Scope

3 Unsound food
Voluntary surrender certificate 01/04/2019 39.15 40.32 Included

4 Frozen food exports
Inspection and certification 01/04/2019 78.30 80.64 Included
Certification only 01/04/2019 28.75 29.58 Included

5 Food Hygiene Rating Scheme
Re-inspection/Re-visit 01/04/2018 150.00 150.00 Included

6 Control of dogs

Collecting and detaining stray dogs (statutory fine) 01/04/1996 25.00 25.00 O/Scope
Handling, Kenneling & Administration 01/04/2019 36.60 38.00 O/Scope
Kennelling per day or part of 01/04/2019 17.00 17.50 O/Scope

7 Scrap Metal
Dealer initial licence - 3 year licence Part A 01/04/2019 198.80 205.00 O/Scope
Dealer initial licence - 3 year licence Part B 01/04/2019 390.40 402.00 O/Scope
Collector initial licence 01/04/2019 153.50 158.00 O/Scope
Dealer licence renewal - Part A 01/04/2019 167.90 173.00 O/Scope
Dealer licence renewal - Part B 01/04/2019 390.40 402.00 O/Scope
Collector licence renewal 01/04/2019 122.30 126.00 O/Scope
Licence name change * 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 O/Scope
Copy of a licence 01/04/2019 11.45 12.00 O/Scope
* per individual

8 Caravan Sites & Park Homes
Application for a new site Licence - Fixed cost 01/04/2019 394.10 405.00 O/Scope
Transfer/amendments of up to 2 Licence conditions 01/04/2019 162.05 167.00 O/Scope
Significant amendments involving a site visit 01/04/2019 233.10 240.00 O/Scope
Annual Fee - per pitch 01/04/2019 10.40 11.00 O/Scope
Enforcement - Based on an hourly rate 01/04/2018 Variable variable O/Scope
Deposit of site rules 01/04/2019 56.45 58.50 O/Scope

NB Relevant fees as per the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 are now broken down into Part A and Part B. 
Part A is payable upon application, Part B is payable upon grant of license

37



Appendix B

Detail Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT
Date £ £

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

9 ENQUIRIES IN CONNECTION WITH CONTAMINATED LAND
Enquiries  01/04/2019 126.50 130.50 O/Scope

10 Private sector housing charges 01/04/2012 Hourly Rate Hourly Rate O/Scope

11 Food Hygiene/Health & Safety Charges 01/04/2018 Hourly Rate Hourly Rate Included

12 Immigration inspections 01/04/2019 103.00 106.00 O/Scope

13 Private Sector Housing Civil Penalties (Maximum
penalty allowed by legislation £30,000 as alternative to
prosecution) 01/04/2018 30,000.00 30,000.00 O/Scope

14 HOUSES OF MULTIPLE OCCUPATION
Initial/New Licence 01/04/2019 473.50 488.00 O/Scope
Renewal of licence 01/04/2019 168.30 173.50 O/Scope

15 SAMPLING OF PRIVATE WATER SUPPLIES INTENDED FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION*
Risk Assessment (each assessment) 01/04/2019 500.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope
Sampling (each visit) 01/04/2019 100.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope
Investigation (each investigation) 01/04/2019 100.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope
Grant of authorisation (each authorisation) 01/04/2019 100.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope

Analysing a sample:
Taken under Reg 10 (domestic) 01/04/2019 25.00 Variable O/Scope
Taken during monitoring of group A parameters 01/04/2019 100.00 Variable O/Scope
Taken during monitoring of Group B parameters and
monitoring under regulation 11 01/04/2019 500.00 Variable O/Scope

16 SMOKE FREE FIXED PENALTY NOTICES
Smoking in smoke free designated premises, place,
vehicle 01/04/2016 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
If paid within 15 days of issue 01/04/2016 30.00 30.00 O/Scope

Failing to display smoke free signage as per law 01/04/2016 200.00 200.00 O/Scope
If paid within 15 days of issue 01/04/2016 150.00 150.00 O/Scope

17 SMOKE AND CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS FOR RELEVANT LANDLORDS
Full cost recovery plus penalty charge for failure to
comply 01/04/2016 700 - 4,500 700 - 4,500 O/Scope

(Maximum penalty allowed by legislation £5,000)

18 LETTING AGENTS REDRESS SCHEME
Penalty for failure to comply 01/04/2017 5,000.00 5,000.00 O/Scope

(Maximum penalty allowed by legislation £5,000 should
be considered the norm and a lower fine should only
be charged if there are extenuating circumstances
considered on a case by case basis)
*The Private Water Supplies (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 consultation has now concluded and new 

legislation has removed the maximum cap on charges. Charges will be based on cost recovery.

38



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

19 HYGIENE & FOOD SAFETY
New Business Advice Consulation 01/04/2019 N/A 195.00 Included
Food Hygiene Checkup 01/04/2019 N/A 150.00 Included
Food Safety Organiser 01/04/2019 N/A 29.70 Included
Food hygiene workshop (1 hour max 8 people) 01/04/2019 N/A 111.00 Included
Pocket guides 01/04/2019 N/A 21.00 Included

20 SAFER FOOD BETTER BUSINESS
Catering pack 01/04/2019 N/A 19.50 Included
Retail pack 01/04/2019 N/A 18.60 Included
Childminder pack 01/04/2019 N/A 12.00 Included
Residential care home supplement 01/04/2019 N/A 6.60 Included
6 month diary refill 01/04/2019 N/A 10.20 Included
12 month diary refill 01/04/2019 N/A 12.00 Included

21
MINIMUM ENERGY EFFICIENCY STANDARDS (PRIVATE
RENTED PROPERTY) *
Letting substandard property (less than 3 months) 01/04/2019 N/A 2000.00 O/scope
Letting substandard property (3 months or more) 01/04/2019 N/A 4000.00 O/scope
Registering false or misleading information on the PRS
Exemptions Register 01/04/2019 N/A 1000.00 O/scope
Failing to comply with compliance notice 01/04/2019 N/A 2000.00 O/scope

*These are subject to approval in the Private Sector
Housing Enforcement Policy which is tabled for Cabinet in
November

39



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

VAT
Date

LAPPC Permits for Part B Installations, Mobile Plant and
Solvent Emissions Activities

Application Fees
1 Standard Process (includes solvent emission activites) 01/04/2017 1,650.00 O/Scope

Standard Processes additional fee for operating without a
permit 01/04/2017 1,188.00

O/Scope

PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners 01/04/2017 155.00 O/Scope
PVR I & II combined 01/04/2017 257.00 O/Scope
Vehicle refinishers (VRs) and other reduced fees activities 01/04/2017 362.00 O/Scope
Reduced fee activities:  Additional fee for operating without a
permit 01/04/2017 99.00
Mobile Plant (not using simplified permits) 01/04/2017 1,650.00 O/Scope
 - for the third to seventh application 01/04/2017 985.00 O/Scope
 - for the eighth and subsequent applications 01/04/2017 498.00 O/Scope
Where an application for any of the above is for a
combined Part B and waste application, add an
extra £297 to the above amounts

2 Substantial changes to permits
Standard Process 01/04/2017 1,050.00 O/Scope
Standard Process where the substantial change results in a new
PPC activity 01/04/2017 1,650.00 O/Scope

Reduced Fee Activities 01/04/2017 102.00 O/Scope

3 Transfer and Surrender 
Transfer of a permit - Standard Process 01/04/2017 169.00 O/Scope
New operator at low risk reduced fee activity (extra one off
subsistence charge) 01/04/2017 78.00 O/Scope

Partial transfer of a standard permit 01/04/2017 497.00 O/Scope
Reduced Fee Activitites: Partial Transfer 01/04/2017 47.00 O/Scope
Reduced Fee Activites: Transfer 01/04/2014 0.00 O/Scope

4 Temporary transfer for mobiles
First transfer 01/04/2017 53.00 O/Scope
Repeat following enforcement or warning 01/04/2017 53.00 O/Scope

5 Annual Subsistence Charge
Standard Process - LOW 01/04/2017 772.00 (+103)* O/Scope
Standard Process - MEDIUM 01/04/2017 1,161.00 (+156)* O/Scope
Standard Process - HIGH 01/04/2017 1,747.00 (+207)* O/Scope
* The additional amount in brackets must be charged where a
permit is for a combined Part B and waste installation

LOW MED HIGH
PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners 01/04/2017 79.00 158.00 237.00 O/Scope
PVR I & II combined 01/04/2017 113.00 226.00 341.00 O/Scope
Vehicle refinishers and other Reduced Fees 01/04/2017 228.00 365.00 548.00 O/Scope
Mobile Plant for the first and second permits 01/04/2017 646.00 1,034.00 1,506.00 O/Scope
for the third to seventh permits 01/04/2017 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope
for the eighth and subsequent permits 01/04/2017 198.00 316.00 473.00 O/Scope

Late Payment Fee (8 weeks from date of invoice) 01/04/2017 52.00 O/Scope
* Where a Part B installation is subject to reporting under the E-
PRTR Regulation, add an extra £103 to the above annual
subsistence amounts

NOTES
The above fees are those currently imposed by DEFRA, a full copy of which can be viewed on their website www.gov.uk

40

http://www.defra.gov.uk/


Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £ £ £

6
LAPPC mobile plant charges (not using
simplified permit)

Application
fee LOW MED HIGH

number of permits
1 01/04/2017 1,650.00 646.00 1,034.00 1,506.00 O/Scope
2 01/04/2017 1,650.00 646.00 1,034.00 1,506.00 O/Scope
3 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope
4 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope
5 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope
6 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope
7 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope
8 and over 01/04/2017 498.00 198.00 316.00 473.00 O/Scope

7 LA-IPPC (Local Authority Element)
Application 01/04/2017 3,363.00 O/Scope

additional fee for operating without a permit 01/04/2017 1,188.00 O/Scope
Annual subsistence LOW 01/04/2017 1,446.00 O/Scope
Annual subsistence MEDIUM 01/04/2017 1,610.00 O/Scope
Annual subsistence HIGH 01/04/2017 2,333.00 O/Scope

Late Payment Fee 01/04/2017 52.00 O/Scope
Variation 01/04/2017 1,368.00 O/Scope
Substantial variation 01/04/2017 3,363.00 O/Scope
Transfer 01/04/2017 235.00 O/Scope
Partial transfer 01/04/2017 698.00 O/Scope
Surrender 01/04/2017 698.00 O/Scope

*Additional fee for payment of subsistence fees
for LAPPC and LAIPPC by quarterly instalments 01/04/2017 38.00 O/Scope

** where 9(2)(a) or (b) applies under the Local
Authority Permits for Part A(2) Installations and
small waste incineration plan(Fees and Charges)
(England) (Scheme) 2017

NOTES
The above fees are detailed in the Local Authority Permits for Part A(2) Installations and small waste incineration

plan (Fees & Charges) (England) (Scheme) 2017 in the currently imposed by DEFRA, a fully copy of which can be viewed
on their website www.defra.gov.uk

* Subsistence charges can be paid in four equal quarterly instalments paid on 1 April, 1 July, 1 October and 1 January.
Where paid quarterly the amount payable to the authority will increase by £38

41

http://www.defra.gov.uk/


Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

LICENCES

1 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire *
Driver's licence - 3 Year - Standard Licence Period 01/04/2019 247.10 254.50 O/Scope
Driver's licence - annual (conditions apply) 01/04/2019 90.25 93.00 O/Scope
Dual licence - supplementary charge 01/04/2019 14.05 14.50 O/Scope
Driver's badge - replacement 01/04/2019 13.40 14.00 O/Scope
Lost plate replacement 01/04/2019 40.40 41.50 Included
Replacement licence certificate 01/04/2019 11.25 12.00 O/Scope
Replacement bracket 01/04/2019 10.30 11.00 Included
Replacement of internal vehicle plate 01/04/2019 5.70 6.00 O/Scope
Transfer of vehicle ownership 01/04/2019 25.85 26.50 O/Scope
Knowledge test (initial and retest) 01/04/2019 42.45 44.00 O/Scope
Private Hire Operator Licence - 5 Year 01/04/2019 146.80 151.00 O/Scope
Change of registration number ie cherished number plates 01/04/2019 57.40 59.00 O/Scope

2 Annual vehicle licence *
Private Hire 01/04/2019 212.20 218.55 O/Scope
Hackney Carriage 01/04/2019 231.45 238.50 O/Scope
*20% reduction for LPG/Hybrid/Wheelchair vehicles: Private Hire 01/04/2019 169.75 175.00 O/Scope
*20% reduction for LPG/Hybrid/Wheelchair vehicles: Hackney 01/04/2019 185.10 190.50 O/Scope
Exemption from displaying Private Hire plate 01/04/2019 31.35 32.00 O/Scope
Exemption from displaying Private Hire plate (renewal fee) 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 O/Scope

3 Refund for unexpired days due to change of vehicle * Daily
Private Hire 01/04/2018 0.60 0.60 O/Scope
Hackney Carriage 01/04/2018 0.65 0.65 O/Scope

4 One-off admin charge in respect of refund *
Hackney Carriage 01/04/2019 25.75 26.50 O/Scope
Private Hire 01/04/2019 25.75 26.50 O/Scope

5 Animal Licences
Pre application/Re-inspections/Licence variation inspections (where applicable)01/04/2019 62.75 64.50 O/Scope
Dog Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Dog Boarding - Part B ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75) 01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Cat Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Cat Boarding - Part B ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75) 01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Dual Dog and Cat Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 130.00 134.00 O/Scope
Dual Dog and Cat Boarding - Part B ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75)01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Dog Day Care - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Dog Day Care - Part B ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75) 01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Home Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Home Boarding - Part B ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75) 01/04/2019 73.40 75.50 O/Scope
Dog Breeding Establishments Part A (excludes vets fees) 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Dog Breeding Establishments Part B (excludes vets fees) ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75)01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Pet Shops - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Pet Shops - Part B ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75) 01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Riding Establishments Part A (excludes vets fees) 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Riding Establishments Part B (excludes vets fees) ( includes mandatory inspection fee of £62.75)01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Dangerous Wild Animals (excludes vets fees) 01/04/2019 115.75 119.00 O/Scope
Transfer of licence 01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope
Animals for exhibition (3 year Licence) Part A (excludes vets fees) 01/04/2019 90.00 93.00 O/Scope
Animals for exhibition (3 year Licence) Part B (excludes vets fees) 01/04/2019 88.50 91.00 O/Scope

6 Zoo Licences
New Application (4 year)  Part A - excludes vets fees 01/04/2019 391.40 403.00 O/Scope
New Application (4 year) Part B - excludes vets fees 01/04/2019 103.00 106.00 O/Scope
Renewal (6 year)  Part A - excludes vets fees 01/04/2019 412.00 424.50 O/Scope
Renewal (6 year)  Part B - excludes vets fees -  01/04/2019 206.00 212.00 O/Scope
Transfer of Licence 01/04/2019 61.80 63.50 O/Scope

7 Sex Establishments
New Application/Renewal - Part A 01/04/2019 1,519.25 1,565.00 O/Scope
New Application/Renewal - Part B 01/04/2019 123.60 127.00 O/Scope

8 Street Trading
Stamford Pedestrian Precinct Per Day 01/04/2019 23.00 23.50 O/Scope
Other Locations per day from 01/04/2019 18.50 19.00 O/Scope
Other Locations- 4hrs or less per day 01/04/2019 10.00 10.50 O/Scope
Private Land per day 01/04/2019 10.00 10.50 O/Scope

NB Relevant fees as per the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 are now broken down into Part A and Part B. 
Part A is payable upon application, Part B is payable upon grant of license

42



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VATDate £ £

ALCOHOL LICENSING

1 Licensed Premises
Grant of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 190.00 190.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 450.00 450.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 635.00 635.00 O/Scope

2 Variation of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 190.00 190.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 450.00 450.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 635.00 635.00 O/Scope
Minor Variation 30/06/2009 89.00 89.00 O/Scope

3 Annual Fee for Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 70.00 70.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 180.00 180.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 295.00 295.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 320.00 320.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 350.00 350.00 O/Scope

4 Grant of Premises Licence where alcohol is primary use
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 190.00 190.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 900.00 900.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 1,905.00 1,905.00 O/Scope

5 Annual Fee for Premises Licence where alcohol is primary use
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 70.00 70.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 180.00 180.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 295.00 295.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 640.00 640.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 1,050.00 1,050.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

43



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

ALCOHOL LICENSING

6 Grant of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Number of Persons
5,000 to 9,999 24/11/2005 1,000.00 1,000.00 O/Scope
10,000 to 14,999 24/11/2005 2,000.00 2,000.00 O/Scope
15,000 to 19,999 24/11/2005 4,000.00 4,000.00 O/Scope
20,000 to 29,999 24/11/2005 8,000.00 8,000.00 O/Scope
30,000 to 39,999 24/11/2005 16,000.00 16,000.00 O/Scope
40,000 to 49,999 24/11/2005 24,000.00 24,000.00 O/Scope
50,000 to 59,999 24/11/2005 32,000.00 32,000.00 O/Scope
60,000 to 69,999 24/11/2005 40,000.00 40,000.00 O/Scope
70,000 to 79,999 24/11/2005 48,000.00 48,000.00 O/Scope
80,000 to 89,999 24/11/2005 56,000.00 56,000.00 O/Scope
90,000 and over 24/11/2005 64,000.00 64,000.00 O/Scope

7 Annual Fee - Number of Persons
5,000 to 9,999 24/11/2005 500.00 500.00 O/Scope
10,000 to 14,999 24/11/2005 1,000.00 1,000.00 O/Scope
15,000 to 19,999 24/11/2005 2,000.00 2,000.00 O/Scope
20,000 to 29,999 24/11/2005 4,000.00 4,000.00 O/Scope
30,000 to 39,999 24/11/2005 8,000.00 8,000.00 O/Scope
40,000 to 49,999 24/11/2005 12,000.00 12,000.00 O/Scope
50,000 to 59,999 24/11/2005 16,000.00 16,000.00 O/Scope
60,000 to 69,999 24/11/2005 20,000.00 20,000.00 O/Scope
70,000 to 79,999 24/11/2005 24,000.00 24,000.00 O/Scope
80,000 to 89,999 24/11/2005 28,000.00 28,000.00 O/Scope
90,000 and over 24/11/2005 32,000.00 32,000.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

44



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

ALCOHOL LICENSING

8 Other Charges - Licensing Act 2003
Personal Licence (Grant/ renewal) 24/11/2005 37.00 37.00 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of a personal licence 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Duty to notify change of name or address 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Temporary Event Notice 24/11/2005 21.00 21.00 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of a Temporary Event Notice 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of a premises licence or summary 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Application for a provisional statement where 
premises being built etc 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Notification of change of name or address 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope

Application to vary licence to specify individual as DPS 24/11/2005 23.00 23.00 O/Scope
Transfer of premises licence 24/11/2005 23.00 23.00 O/Scope

Interim authority notice following death etc of licence holder 24/11/2005 23.00 23.00 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of certificate of summary 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope

Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Change of relevant registered address of club 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Right of freeholder etc to be notified of licensing
matters 24/11/2005 21.00 21.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

45



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

GAMBLING LICENSING

1 Bingo Premises Licence
Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 727.20 749.00 O/Scope
Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 483.10 597.50 O/Scope
Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 767.35 790.50 O/Scope
Annual Fee 01/04/2019 511.95 527.50 O/Scope
Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 699.40 720.50 O/Scope
Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 585.05 602.50 O/Scope
Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 585.05 602.50 O/Scope

2 Adult Gaming Centre
Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 669.50 689.50 O/Scope
Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 428.50 441.50 O/Scope
Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 699.40 720.50 O/Scope
Annual Fee 01/04/2019 450.15 464.00 O/Scope
Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 647.90 667.50 O/Scope
Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 523.25 539.00 O/Scope
Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 523.25 539.00 O/Scope

3 Family Entertainment Centre
Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 669.50 689.50 O/Scope
Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 428.50 411.50 O/Scope
Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 699.40 720.50 O/Scope
Annual Fee 01/04/2019 450.15 463.50 O/Scope
Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 647.90 667.50 O/Scope
Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 523.25 539.00 O/Scope
Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 523.25 539.00 O/Scope

4 Betting Premises
Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 669.50 689.50 O/Scope
Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 428.50 441.50 O/Scope
Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 699.40 720.50 O/Scope
Annual Fee 01/04/2019 450.15 464.00 O/Scope
Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 647.90 667.50 O/Scope
Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 523.25 539.00 O/Scope
Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 523.25 539.00 O/Scope

5 Miscellaneous
Change of Circumstances 01/04/2019 53.25 55.00 O/Scope
Fee for copy of licence 01/04/2019 26.10 27.00 O/Scope

46



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

GAMBLING LICENSING

6 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres (10 year duration)
Gaming Machine Permit (no annual fee) 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope
Renewal 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope
Change of name 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope
Copy of Permit 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope
Prize Gaming Permit (no annual fee) 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope
Renewal 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope
Change of name 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope
Copy of Permit 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

7 Club Gaming Permit & Club Machine Permit (10 years duration)
New 31/01/2007 200.00 200.00 O/Scope
Renewal 31/01/2007 200.00 200.00 O/Scope
Annual Fee 31/01/2007 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
Variation  31/01/2007 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Copy of Permit 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

8 Gaming Machines
2 or less - One off fee 31/01/2007 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
3 or more machines plus annual fee below 31/01/2007 150.00 150.00 O/Scope
Transfer 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope
Variation 31/01/2007 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Change of name on a Gaming Permit (more than 2
machines) 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Copy of Gaming Machine Permit (more than 2 machines) 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope
Annual Fee 31/01/2007 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

9 Small Lotteries
Registration 01/09/2007 40.00 40.00 O/Scope
Renewal 01/09/2007 20.00 20.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

47



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

NEIGHBOURHOODS

1 Fixed Penalty Notice - Community Protection Notice 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

2 Fixed Penalty Notice - Public Space Protection Order 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

3 Fixed Penalty Notice - Domestic Waste Offence 01/04/2017 80.00 80.00 O/Scope

4 Fixed Penalty Notice - Commercial Waste Offence 01/04/2017 110.00 110.00 O/Scope

5 Fixed Penalty Notice - Waste Transfer Offence 01/04/2017 300.00 300.00 O/Scope

6 Fixed Penalty Notice - Littering* 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

7 Fixed Penalty Notice - Fly Tipping 01/04/2018 400.00 400.00 O/Scope

8 Fixed Penalty Notice - Fly Posting/Graffiti* 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

9 Fixed Penalty Notice - Abandoning a Vehicle 01/04/2017 200.00 200.00 O/Scope

10 Fixed Penalty Notice - Nuisance Parking 01/04/2017 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

11 REQUESTS FOR RELEASE OF CCTV IMAGES
Legal Representative/Insurance Company 01/04/2016 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

12 Neighbourhood charges 01/04/2019 Hourly rate O/Scope

NB. The above fees are set at the maximum full penalty with the exception of those marked * which are set 
at the default penalty as determined in the Environmental Offences (Fixed Penalties) (England) Regulations

48



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

OUTDOOR RECREATION

1 Pitches - Football/Rugby
Senior pitch letting (2 hrs), marking out and
changing accommodation included
Full rate 01/04/2019 47.00 48.24 Included
Concessions 01/04/2019 27.75 28.50 Included

2 Junior pitch (ages 11-16) letting (2 hrs) and marking out
Full rate 01/04/2019 20.95 21.48 Included

3 Mini pitch letting (ages 8-11) (1 hr) and marking out
Full rate 01/04/2019 12.50 12.84 Included

4 Tennis Court
Hard Courts Free Free Included

5 Cricket
Per Match 01/04/2019 43.80 45.00 Included

6 Wyndham Park Visitor Centre
Room hire per hour* 01/04/2019 N/A 15.00 Included
*Guide price - please call the Visitor Centre for a specific hire quotation

49



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

GRANTHAM CEMETERY
TRADITIONAL BURIAL GROUND

1 Exclusive Right of Burial
(Not exceeding 50 years)
Standard grave space - Parishioners 01/04/2019 527.40 543.00 Exempt

2 Interment
Person aged 16 years or over - single depth 01/04/2019 537.70 554.00 Exempt
Person aged 16 years or over - double depth 01/04/2019 602.55 621.00 Exempt
Child below 16 years 01/04/2019 235.90 242.00 Exempt
Each additional coffin space 01/04/2019 188.50 194.00 Exempt

3 Licence for the Erection of Memorials
Headstone (not exceeding 3 feet in height) 01/04/2019 129.80 134.00 Exempt
Headstone (each additional 6 inches) 01/04/2019 129.80 134.00 Exempt
Metal faced tablet 01/04/2019 89.65 92.00 Exempt
Additional inscription 01/04/2019 50.00 51.50 Exempt
Kerbed memorial 01/04/2019 140.10 144.50 Exempt

4 Mausoleum
Single vault mausoleum plot 01/04/2019 676.75 697.00 Exempt

5 Re-Open Graves
Interment Fee - single depth 01/04/2019 459.40 473.00 Exempt
Interment Fee - double depth 01/04/2019 602.55 621.00 Exempt
Interment ashed into grave 01/04/2019 156.60 161.50 Exempt

6 Woodland Burial Ground
All inclusive charge covering standard grave space,
single depth interment, tree and plaque
- Parishioners 01/04/2019 1,209.25 1,245.50 Exempt

Please note there is a 50% additional charge for Non Parishioners (i.e. outside of
Grantham boundary) on items 1- Exclusive Right of Burial, 4- Re-open Graves and 6- Woodland Burial Ground

50



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

LOCAL LAND CHARGE FEES

1 Registration of a Charge on Part II of Register 01/04/2019 83.75 86.00 O/Scope

2 Filing a Definitive Certificate of Lands Tribunal 01/04/2019 3.50 4.00 O/Scope

3 Filing adjustment etc. for variation -
cancellation of entry in Part II 01/04/2019 8.85 9.00 O/Scope

4 Inspection of documents filed under Rule 10 01/04/2019 3.50 4.00 O/Scope

5 Official search (including issue of certificate)
 - whole of register 01/04/2019 14.75 15.00 O/Scope

6 Office copy of entry in register 01/04/2019 13.60 14.00 O/Scope

7 Con 29 Part I enquiries*
 - one parcel of land, including the revised Con 29 questions 01/04/2019 134.52 135.00 Included
 - each additional parcel 01/04/2019 18.90 19.50 Included

8 Supplementary Part II enquiries*
 - each printed enquiry 01/04/2019 16.41 16.80 Included
 - Solicitor/Clients own enquiry 01/04/2019 21.39 21.90 Included
 - Question 22 common land 01/04/2019 21.39 21.90 Included

9 Commercial*
Basic search including official search and LLC1 01/04/2019 45.05 47.00 O/Scope

Con 29R 01/04/2019 134.52 135.00 Included

10 Expedited Search - 3 Day Turnaround 01/04/2019 33.80 35.00 O/Scope

CON 29R UNREFINED DATA CHARGES*
Building Regulations  Q1.1 (F to H) 01/04/2019 4.35 6.00 Included
Roads  Q2.1 01/04/2019 5.37 6.00 Included
PROWS   Q2.2 01/04/2019 8.91 6.00 Included
Land Requisitioned for Public Purposes  Q3.1 01/04/2019 1.32 6.00 Included
Roadworks   Q3.2 01/04/2019 1.32 6.00 Included
Drainage   Q3.3 01/04/2019 3.75 6.00 Included
Road Schemes   Q3.4 01/04/2019 3.12 6.00 Included
Nearby Railway Schemes  Q3.5 01/04/2019 0.12 6.00 Included
Traffic Schemes   Q3.6 01/04/2019 3.72 6.00 Included
Outstanding Notices  Q3.7 (A-D & F) 01/04/2019 0.54 6.00 Included
Notices    Q3.7 E & G                                01/04/2019 1.92 6.00 Included

Contravention of Building Regulations   Q3.8 01/04/2019 0.63 6.00 Included
Notices, Orders, Directions and Proceedings
             under Planning Acts  Q3.9 (A-N) 01/04/2019 1.23 6.00 Included
Community Infrastructure Levy  Q3.10 01/04/2019 0.24 6.00 Included
Conservation Area  Q3.11 01/04/2019 0.63 6.00 Included
Compulsory Purchase  Q3.12 01/04/2019 4.65 6.00 Included
Contaminated Land  Q3.13 01/04/2019 0.09 6.00 Included
Radon   Q3.14 01/04/2019 0.09 6.00 Included
Assets of Community Value    Q3.15 01/04/2019 0.03 6.00 Included

*The charges quoted above are the minimum charged, based on a standard timing. More complex queries taking 
longer to answer will incur a further charge based on an hourly rate of £47.28

51



Appendix B

A. OUTLINE APPLICATIONS

£462 per 0.1 hectare for sites up to and
including 2.5 hectares

Not more than 2.5
hectares

£462 per 0.1 hectare

£11,432 + £138 for each 0.1 in excess of
2.5 hectares to a maximum of £150,000

More than 2.5
hectares

£11,432 + £138 per 0.1
hectare

B. HOUSEHOLDER APPLICATIONS
Alterations/extensions to a single dwellinghouse, including
works within boundary

Single dwellinghouse £206

C. FULL APPLICATIONS
(and First Submissions of Reserved Matters; or Technical
Details Consent)
Alterations/extensions to two or more dwellinghouses,
including works within
boundaries

Two or more dwellinghouses (or
two or more flats)

£407

New dwellinghouses (up to and including 50) New dwellinghouses
(not more than 50)

£462 per dwellinghouse

New dwellinghouses (for more than 50)
£22,859 + £138 per additional dwellinghouse in excess of 50
up to a maximum fee of £300,000

New dwellinghouses (more than
50)

£22,859 + £138 per additional
dwellinghouse

Erection of buildings (not dwellinghouses,  agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor machinery):
Gross floor space to be created by the development No increase in gross floor space

or no more than
40 sq m

£234

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 40 sq m but no more
than
75 sq m

£462

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 75 sq m but no more
than
3,750 sq m

£462 for each 75sq m or part thereof

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 3,750 sq m £22,859 + £138 for
each additional 75 sq m in excess of
3,750 sq m to a maximum of
£300,000

The erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural purposes)
Gross floor space to be created by the
development

Not more than 465
sq m

£96

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 465 sq m but not
more
than 540 sq m

£462

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 540 sq m but not
more than 4,215 sq m

£462 for first 540 sq m
+ £462 for each 75 sq m (or part
thereof) in excess of 540 sq m

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 4,215 sq m £22,859 + £138 for each 75 sq m (or
part thereof) in excess of 4,215 sq m
up to a maximum of £300,000

Erection of glasshouses (on land used for the purposes of
agriculture)
Gross floor space to be created by the
development

Not more than 465
sq m

£96

Gross floor space to be created by the
development

More than 465 sq m £2,580

* The fees above are set by Government 

52



Appendix B

Erection/alterations/replacement of plant and machinery
Site area Not more than 5 hectares £462 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 5 hectares £22,859 + additional
£138 for each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof) in excess of 5
hectares to a maximum
of £300,000

D. APPLICATIONS OTHER THAN BUILDING WORKS
Car parks, service roads or other
accesses

For existing uses £234

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of material remaining  after extraction or storage of minerals)
Site area Not more than 15 hectares £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 15 hectares £34,934 + £138 for each
0.1 hectare (or part thereof) in excess
of 15 hectares up to a maximum of
£78,000

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas
Site area Not more than 7.5 hectares £508 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 7.5 hectares £38,070  + additional
£151 for each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof) in excess of 7.5 hectares up
to a
maximum of £300,000

Operations (other than exploratory drilling) for the winning and working of oil or natural gas
Site area Not more than 15 hectares £257 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 15 hectares £38,520 + additional
£151 for each 0.1 in excess of 15
hectare up to a maximum of
£78,000

Other operations (winning and working of minerals) excluding oil and natural gas
Site area Not more than 15 hectares £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 15 hectares £34,934 + additional
£138 for each 0.1 in excess of 15
hectare up to a maximum of
£78,000

Other operations (not coming within  any of the above categories)
Site area Any site area £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof) up to a
maximum of £2,028

E. LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE
Existing use or operation Same as Full

Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with any
condition or limitation

£234

Proposed use or operation Half the normal
planning fee.

* The fees above are set by Government 

53



Appendix B

F. PRIOR APPROVAL
Agricultural  and Forestry buildings & operations  or
demolition of buildings

£96

Communications (previously referred to as
‘Telecommunications Code Systems Operators’)

£462

Proposed Change of Use to State Funded School or Registered
Nursery

£96

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a State-Funded School or Registered
Nursery

£96

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a flexible use within Shops, Financial and
Professional services, Restaurants and Cafes, Business, Storage or Distribution,
Hotels, or Assembly or Leisure

£96

Proposed Change of Use of a building from Office (Use Class B1) Use to a use falling within
Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse)

£96

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a Dwellinghouse  (Use Class C3), where
there are no Associated Building Operations

£96

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a Dwellinghouse  (Use Class C3), and
Associated Building Operations

£206

Proposed Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2) Use or a Mixed
Retail and Residential Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse), where there
are no Associated Building Operations

£96

Proposed Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2) Use or a Mixed
Retail and Residential Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse), and
Associated Building Operations

£206

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change Of Use from Storage or Distribution Buildings
(Class B8) and any land within  its curtilage to Dwellinghouses (Class C3)

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Amusement  Arcades/Centres and
Casinos, (Sui Generis Uses) and any land within its curtilage to Dwellinghouses  (Class C3)

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Amusement  Arcades/Centres and
Casinos, (Sui Generis Uses) and any land within its curtilage to Dwellinghouses  (Class C3),
and  Associated Building Operations

£206

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Shops (Class A1), Financial and
Professional Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui
Generis Uses) to Restaurants and Cafés (Class A3)

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Shops (Class A1), Financial and
Professional Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui
Generis Uses) to Restaurants and Cafés (Class A3), and  Associated Building Operations

£206

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Shops (Class A1) and Financial and
Professional Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day Loan Shops (Sui Generis Uses) to
Assembly and Leisure Uses (Class D2)

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for a Development Consisting of the Erection or Construction of
a Collection Facility within the Curtilage of a Shop

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for the Temporary Use of Buildings or Land for the Purpose of
Commercial Film-Making and the Associated Temporary Structures, Works, Plant or
Machinery required in Connection with that Use

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for the Installation,  Alteration or Replacement of other Solar
Photovoltaics (PV) equipment on the Roofs of Non-domestic Buildings, up to a Capacity of 1
Megawatt

£96

* The fees above are set by Government 

54



Appendix B

G. RESERVED MATTERS
Application  for approval of reserved matters following
outline approval grant of planning permission

Full fee due or if full fee already paid
then £462 due

H. APPROVAL/VARIATION/DISCHARGE OF CONDITION
Application  for removal or variation  of a condition following
grant of planning permission

£234

Request for confirmation that one or more planning
conditions have been complied with

£34 per request for
Householder otherwise
£116 per request

I. CHANGE OF USE of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses,  or other cases
Number  of dwellinghouses Not more than 50

dwellinghouses
£462 for each

Number  of dwellinghouses More than 50 dwellinghouses £22,859 + £138 for each in excess of
50 up to a maximum of
£300,000

Other Changes of Use of a building or land £462

J. ADVERTISING

Relating to the business on the premises £132

Advance signs which are not situated on or visible from
the site, directing the public to a business

£132

Other advertisements £462

K. APPLICATION FOR NON-MATERIAL AMENDMENT FOLLOWING A GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION 

Applications in respect of householder developments £34

Applications in respect of other developments £234

L. APPLICATION FOR PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE (valid from 1 June 2018)

Site area  £402 for each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof)

* The fees above are set by Government 

55



Appendix B

M. CONCESSIONS

Exemptions from payment

For alterations,  extensions, etc. to a dwellinghouse for the benefit of a registered disabled person
An application  solely for the carrying out of the operations for the purpose of providing a means of access for disabled persons to or
within  a building or premises to which members of the public are admitted
Listed Building Consent
Planning permission  for relevant demolition in a Conservation Area
Works to Trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order or in a Conservation Area 
Hedgerow Removal
If the application is the first revision of an application  for development of the same character or description on the same site by the
same applicant:
* For a withdrawn application:  Within 12 months  of the date when the application was received
* For a determined application:  Within 12 months of the date the application  was granted, refused or an appeal dismissed

* For an application where an appeal was made on the grounds of non- determination: Within 12 months of the period when the
giving of notice of a decision on the earlier valid application  expired
If the application is for a lawful development certificate, for existing use, where an application  for planning permission  for the same
development would be exempt from the need to pay a planning fee under any other planning fee regulation

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement following  either a withdrawal of an earlier application  (before notice of
decision was issued) or where the application  is made following  refusal of consent for display of an advertisement, and where the
application  is made by or on behalf of the same person

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement which results from a direction under Regulation 7 of the 2007
Regulations, dis-applying deemed consent under Regulation 6 to the advertisement in question

If the application is for alternative  proposals for the same site by the same applicant, in order to benefit from the permitted
development right in Schedule 2 Part 3 Class V of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted  Development)  Order 2015
(as amended)
If the application relates to a condition or conditions on an application  for Listed Building Consent or planning permission  for
relevant demolition in a Conservation Area If the application is for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Works to a listed building

Prior Approval for a Proposed Larger Home Extension
Reductions to payments

If the application is being made on behalf of a non-profit making sports club for works for playing fields not involving buildings then
the fee is £462

If the application is being made on behalf of a parish or community council then the fee is 50%

If the application is an alternative  proposal being submitted on the same site by the same applicant on the same day, where this
application is of lesser cost then the fee is 50%
In respect of reserved matters  you must pay a sum equal to or greater than what would be payable at current  rates for approval of
all the reserved matters.  If this amount  has already been paid then the fee is £462

If the application is for a Lawful Development  Certificate for a Proposed use or development, then the fee is 50%

If two or more applications  are submitted for different proposals on the same day and relating to the same site then you must pay the
fee for the highest fee plus half sum of the others
Where an application  crosses one or more local or district planning authorities, the Planning Portal fee calculator will only calculate a
cross boundary  application fee as 150% of the fee that would have been payable if there had only been one application  to a single
authority covering the entire site.

If the fee for this divided site is smaller when the sum of the fees payable for each part of the site are calculated separately, you will
need to contact the lead local authority to discuss the fee for this divided site.

The fee should go to the authority that contains the larger part of the application site.

This is only a summary of scales of fees, listing only the most common types of application.
* The fees above are set by Government

56



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

PLANNING CHARGES

1 Charges in connection with land/property
transactions
Detailed queries on consents involving search 01/04/2019 28.85 29.70 Included
for relevant information*

Check involving site inspection** 01/04/2019 23.00 23.64 Included

*stated charge plus relevant copying charges

**stated charge plus mileage plus officer hourly rates

57



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

PRE-PLANNING CHARGES

1 Householders
Charge for any pre-planning advice undertaken 01/04/2019 60.00 61.80 Included

2 Non-residential changes of use including siting
of caravans for sites
Under 1 ha or buildings under 1,000 sqm (gross) 01/04/2019 202.50 208.50 Included
of 1 ha or above or buildings under 1,000 sqm (gross) 01/04/2019 406.45 418.50 Included

3 Development of dwellings
1-9 dwellings including changes of use to
residential, for 1st dwelling 01/04/2019 268.65 276.60 Included
for each additional dwelling 01/04/2019 134.95 138.90 Included
10-49 dwellings including changes of use to
residential, for the 10th dwelling 01/04/2019 1,354.45 1,395.00 Included
for each additional dwelling 01/04/2019 67.40 69.30 Included
50 plus dwellings, including changes of use to
residential, for 1st dwelling 01/04/2019 4,863.70 5,009.40 Included
Residential development where number of dwellings
unknown - per 0.1 hectare 01/04/2019 195.70 201.30 Included

4 Non-residential development
Where no floor space is created 01/04/2019 101.80 104.82 Included
Up to 499 sqm floor area or 0.5 ha site area 01/04/2019 202.50 208.50 Included
between 500 and 999 sqm floor area, or between
0.51 ha and 1.0 ha 01/04/2019 334.85 344.88 Included
between 1,000 and 4,999 sqm floor area or between
1.1 ha and 2.0 ha 01/04/2019 677.45 697.74 Included
between 5,000 sqm or more or 2.1 ha or more* 01/04/2019 1,354.45 1,395.00 Included
*minimum fee for specified service and hourly
rate thereafter

5 Others
Variation or removal of condition 01/04/2019 101.80 104.76 Included
Advertising 01/04/2019 101.80 104.76 Included
Development that would require conservation
area consent 01/04/2019 67.40 69.36 Included
Non-householder works or alterations to a listed
building 01/04/2019 67.40 69.36 Included
Hazardous substances 01/04/2019 134.95 138.96 Included
Changes of use not falling within any of the above 
categories 01/04/2019 195.70 201.48 Included

58



Appendix B

Detail
Effective 2018/19 2019/20

VAT
Date £ £

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT DISCRETIONARY CHARGES

1 Community Rooms
Residents weekly charge 01/04/2019 6.25 6.50 O/Scope
Voluntary agencies & organisations  usage
- up to 3 hours 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 Exempt
- more than 3 hours/all day 01/04/2019 31.40 32.50 Exempt

Charitable organisations  usage
- up to 3 hours 01/04/2019 5.15 5.50 Exempt
- more than 3 hours/all day 01/04/2019 10.30 10.50 Exempt

2 Communal Facilities
Residents weekly charge 01/04/2019 7.25 7.50 O/Scope

3 Guest Rooms
Double Room - per night * 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 Included
Single Room - per night * 01/04/2019 15.70 15.96 Included
Folding bed - per night * 01/04/2019 5.20 5.40 Included
* 50% discount for persons over 60.

59



This page is intentionally left blank



2019/20 - 2021/22 Capital Programme

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Description New Indicative Updated Base Slippage Updated Indicative Indicative

Bids Base Before Slippage Base Base Base

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Growth
1 Shop Front Scheme 130 - 130 - 130
2 Grantham Christmas Lights 40 - 40 - 40
3 Investment and Regeneration Strategy 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000
4 Local Authority Controlled Company - - 1,400 1,400
5 Guildhall Arts Centre - Theatre lighting & visual equipment - 15 15 - 15
6 LED TV screen 103 - 103 - 103
7 Tourism Signage 50 50 - 50 50

8 Replacement of Gas Boilers at Meres Leisure Centre Grantham 65 - 65 - 65
9 Replacement of Market Stall Covers - - 29 29

10 Car Park Barriers - - 50 50
11 Queen Elizabeth Park, Grantham - Provision of visitor car park 30 - 30 - 30
12 Wyndham Park Grantham Car Park 29 - 29 - 29

10,397 65 10,462 1,479 11,941 50 -

Commercial
13 Disabled Facilities Grant 797 - 797 - 797 797 797
14 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 310 - 310 - 310 57 260
15 Vehicle Replacement Programme 705 - 705 - 705 655 660
16 CCTV Matrix 23 - 23 - 23
17 Pool Car Keyless Entry 14 - 14 - 14
18 Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 - 100 - 100 100 100
19 Trade Waste Bins 24 - 24 - 24 24 24

1,973 - 1,973 - 1,973 1,633 1,841

Resources 
20  Sandbox Firewall - - - 65 65 - -
21  Server and storage infrastructure 115 - 115 - 115 - -
22 Payment Receipting System 40 - 40 - 40 - -
23  Government Digital Services Compliance Programme 80 - 80 - 80 - -

235 - 235 65 300 - -
-

24 TOTAL GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 12,605 65 12,670 1,544 14,214 1,683 1,841

61

A
ppendix C



Appendix C

2019/20 - 2021/22 GENERAL FUND RESERVES STATEMENT

Name Purpose
Balance as

at 31/3/18

Forecast
change
in Year

Forecast
Balance as

at 31/3/19

Forecast
change in

Year

Forecast
Balance as

at 31/3/20

Forecast
change in

Year

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/21

Forecast
change in

Year

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/22

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Discretionary Reserves

1 Stamford Arts Centre Bequest 33 0 33 0 33 0 33 33 
2 Training and Development Member training 15 0 15 (11) 4 0 4 (1) 3 
3 Events and Festivals 233 (140) 93 (93) 0 0 0 0 
4 Apprenticeships Develop Mgt Training 36 (36) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5 Waste and Recycling initatives Fuel duty increases 156 (80) 76 0 76 0 76 76 
6 ICT investment 173 147 320 (112) 208 (22) 186 (22) 164 
7 Economic Development & Growth Local Plan 169 (120) 49 0 49 0 49 49 
8 Service Improvement Reserve 1,065 (1,065) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
9 Community Fund 150 (108) 42 (42) 0 0 0 0 

10 Local Priorities Reserve 10,921 (3,087) 7,834 (1,243) 6,591 1,090 7,681 546 8,227 
11 Regeneration 0 1,000 1,000 282 1,282 (417) 865 -369 496 
12 Invest to Save 802 198 1,000 (168) 832 (101) 731 (101) 630 
13 Housing Delivery Unspent DFGs 347 0 347 0 347 0 347 347 
14 Ward Members 56 (56) 0 0 0 0 0 0  
15 Food Waste 170 (170) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

14,326 (3,517) 10,809 (1,387) 9,422 550 9,972 53 10,025 
Governance Reserves

16 Insurance Reserve 337 (87) 250 0 250 0 250 250 
17 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 466 (54) 412 (56) 356 (58) 298 (60) 238 
18                                - Current EmployeesPensions Reserve - Current Employees 1,768 (757) 1,011 (877) 134 (134) 0 0 
19 BR & CTS Volatility 1,729 (397) 1,332 0 1,332 0 1,332 0 1,332 
20 Building Control (7) 8 1 31 32 41 73 23 96 
21 Football 3G Pitch Grant condition 25 0 25 0 25 25 25 
22 SEA Reserve 260 (58) 202 (50) 152 49 201 49 250 

4,578 (1,345) 3,233 (952) 2,281 (102) 2,179 12 2,191 

23 Total General Revenue Reserves 18,904 (4,862) 14,042 (2,339) 11,703 448 12,151 65 12,216 

Homelessness 21 (21) 0 0 0 0 
New Burdens Grant 111 (23) 88 88 88 88 
Neighbourhood Planning Grant 74 29 103 7 110 7 117 7 124 
Garden Towns & Villages 90 90 90 90 90 
Custom Build 30 30 (23) 7 7 7 
Planning Delivery 90 (14) 76 (76) 0 0 0 
DHP top  up 7 7 7 7 7 
Individual Electoral Registration 118 (16) 102 (21) 81 (7) 74 74 
LGA Commercial 6 6 6 6 6 
Garden Village 385 (114) 271 (200) 71 (71) 0 0 
Historic England 57 57 57 57 57 
Grantham Growth 69 69 69 69 69 

24 Government Grants Received 1,058 (159) 899 (313) 586 (71) 515 7 522 

25 TOTAL Earmarked Revenue Reserves 19,962 (5,021) 14,941 (2,652) 12,289 377 12,666 72 12,738 

26 Working Balance 2,835 (136) 2,699 0 2,699 0 2,699 2,699 

27 Total Revenue Reserves 22,797 (5,157) 17,640 (2,652) 14,988 377 15,365 72 15,437 

Capital Reserve
28 LAMS Reserve Residual scheme liability 304 (286) 18 0 18 0 18 18 
29 St Peters Hill Development 2,607 (2,607) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
30 General Fund Capital Reserve 1,171 (412) 759 (750) 9 0 9 9 
31 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 3,794 (3,281) 513 (300) 213 (150) 63 63 
32 Total Capital Reserves 7,876 (6,586) 1,290 (1,050) 240 (150) 90 0 90 

34 Total General Fund Reserves 30,673 (11,743) 18,930 (3,702) 15,228 227 15,455 72 15,527 

62



2019/20 - 2021/22 HRA Capital Programme

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Ref Description Slippage New Updated Indicative Indicative

Bids Base Base Base
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Energy Efficiency Initiatives
1 Central Heating, Ventilation and boiler replacements - 1,514 1,514 1,769 1,526

- 1,514 1,514 1,769 1,526
Refurbishment and Improvement

2 New Build Properties - 6,800 6,800 5,200 4,500
3 Property Development 2,225 2,775 5,000 5,000 5,000
4 Re-roofing - 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
5 Re-wiring - 300 300 300 300
6 Kitchen & Bathroom Refurbishments - 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
7 Doors & Windows - 100 100 100 100
8 Sewage Refurbishment - 100 100 100
9 Communal Rooms - 70 70 70 70

2,225 12,345 14,570 12,970 12,170
ICT

10 Upgrade of Housing Management System - 250 250 250
- 250 250 250

Purchase of Vehicles
11 Repairs Vehicles - 155 155 124 100

- 155 155 124 100

12 TOTAL - HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2,225 14,264 16,489 15,113 13,796  

63

A
ppendix D



2019/20 - 2021/22 HRA RESERVES STATEMENT

Balance as at
31/3/2018 Movement

Forecast
Balance as

at 31/3/2019 Movement

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/20 Movement

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/21 Movement

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/22

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Revenue Reserves
Insurance Reserve 200 200 200 200 200

Service Specific Funds (Pension) 686 (225) 461 (262) 199 (199) 0 0
HRA Improvement Reserve 561 561 (250) 311 (250) 61 61

Loan Repayment Reserve 16,350 (15,000) 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
Property Development Reserve 0 12,225 12,225 (5,000) 7,225 (5,000) 2,225 (2,225) 0

Working Balance 2,489 570 3,059 470 3,529 (318) 3,211 3,211
Total HRA Revenue Reserves 20,285 (2,430) 17,855 (5,042) 12,813 (5,767) 7,046 (2,225) 4,821

HRA Capital Reserve
HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 3,332 577 3,909 (3,902) 7 380 387 1,257 1,644

Major Repairs Reserve 10,328 2,318 12,646 661 13,307 (1,861) 11,446 (1,798) 9,648
Total HRA Capital Reserves 13,660 2,895 16,555 (3,241) 13,314 (1,481) 11,833 (541) 11,292

Total HRA Reserves 33,946 465 34,411 (8,283) 26,128 (7,248) 18,880 (2,766) 16,114

64



CABINET

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Cabinet

17 January 2019

Matters referred to Cabinet by the Council or 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees since 20 
December 2018 (LDS337)

Decision
Proposal:

Report for information 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member: Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support Assistant
Tel: 01476 406415    
Email: margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Ben Bix, Head of Governance
Tel: 01476 40 65 15 
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk  
Date: 4 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 4 January 2019

65

Agenda Item 5

mailto:j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


SUMMARY

This report highlights any matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council or by the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees since the Cabinet’s last meeting on 20 
December 2018.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Cabinet notes that there are no matters referred to Cabinet 
by Council or the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees on this occasion.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

Council:

1.1     There were no matters referred by Council to the Cabinet at the last meeting of 
Council. 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees:

1.2 The Council operates the Executive decision-making arrangements as set out 
in the Local Government Act 2000, which means it is required to have at least 
one scrutiny committee in place. The Council currently has five Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees. They meet regularly (and may hold additional meetings 
as necessary) to discuss items within their remit.  

1.3 Where an Overview and Scrutiny Committee has met after the publication of 
this Cabinet agenda, any outstanding recommendations to the Cabinet will be 
provided in an addendum to the Cabinet meeting or a synopsis provided with 
the agenda for the next Cabinet meeting depending on the timing of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

1.4 The Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee is scheduled to meet on 
Thursday 10 January 2019. Cabinet will be updated of any recommendations 
made at this meeting during consideration of agenda item 4.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No 
other options were considered.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were 
identified in its production. 

66



5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 This report draws together any matters referred to the Cabinet from Council 
and the recommendations that have been made by all of the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Where appropriate, impact analysis is 
carried out as part of the development process and presented to Cabinet when 
it receives the final reports. 

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no financial comments arising from this report.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 This report offers the Cabinet an opportunity to consider matters which have 
been raised by other Members at meetings of the Council and committees that 
operate within the executive function of the Council.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None.

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 None.

67



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Cabinet

17 January 2019

Representations and questions from non-Cabinet 
Members (LDS339)

Decision
Proposal:

Report for information

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support Assistant
Tel: 01476 406415    
Email: margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Ben Bix, Head of Governance
Tel: 01476 40 65 15 
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk  
Date: 4 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 4 January 2019

SUMMARY

This report highlights any representations or questions that have been received from 
non-Cabinet Members since the Cabinet met on 20 December 2018.

69

Agenda Item 6

mailto:j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

1. The Cabinet notes that prior to the publication of this agenda, no representations 
or questions had been received from non-Cabinet Members since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 December 2018.

2. The Cabinet considers any representations received from non-Cabinet Members 
following publication of the agenda for this meeting. 

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Council’s Constitution provides a facility for Councillors who are not 
Cabinet Members to make representations or ask questions of the Cabinet. 
While it is not necessary for these Councillors to give notice that they intend to 
make a representation to the Cabinet, notice may be given as a courtesy. 
When notice has been given, details will be captured in this report.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No 
other options were considered.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were 
identified in its production. 

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 No analysis has been completed. This report captures any requests that have 
been made by non-Cabinet Members to make representations or ask 
questions.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no financial comments arising from this report.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The agenda for Cabinet meetings provides an opportunity for Councillors who 
are not Cabinet Members to make representations or put questions to the 
Cabinet. There is no requirement for any Member of the Council who wishes to 
make a representation to the Cabinet to give notice of their intentions.

70



9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None. 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 None.

71



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Cabinet

17 January 2019

Cabinet Forward Plan for the period 1 January 2019 
to 31 December 2019  (LDS336)

Decision
Proposal:

Report for information

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support Assistant
Tel: 01476 406415    
Email: margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Ben Bix, Head of Governance
Tel: 01476 40 65 15 
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk  
Date: 4 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 4 January 2019

SUMMARY

This report highlights matters on the Cabinet’s forward plan for the period 1 January 
2019 to 31 December 2019 for decision or recommendation.

73

Agenda Item 7

mailto:j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of the report.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 sets out minimum requirements for 
publicity in connection with key decisions to be made by the Cabinet. The 
Council meets these legislative requirements through the monthly publication of 
its Forward Plan on the Council’s website.

1.2 Cabinet may also receive reports on which it is asked to make 
recommendations to Council or review the contents and take any necessary 
actions. While it is not a requirement to publish this information in the Forward 
Plan, it is the Council’s practice to do so.

1.3 To help Cabinet understand what issues will be put before it in the longer-term, 
items for consideration have been included in the Cabinet’s forward plan 
(attached as Appendix 1 to this report). The Forward Plan also includes details 
of items scheduled for each of the Council meetings due to be held within the 
plan period.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This report has been introduced as a standing item on the agenda for meetings 
of the Cabinet. No other options were considered.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were 
identified in its production.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 This report provides an overview of the work that the Cabinet will be 
undertaking. Where appropriate, analyses relevant to its decisions will be 
presented to Cabinet with reports as individual issues come forward.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no financial comments arising from this report.

74



8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirements to 
which Councils must adhere. Councils may use their discretion to publish 
information that exceeds the minimum requirements.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1 – Cabinet Forward Plan: 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 Section 9 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/regulation/9/made)

75

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/regulation/9/made


This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET FORWARD PLAN
 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet 

1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

At its meetings, the Cabinet may make key decisions and non-key decisions. They may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework.

A key decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely:

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard 
to the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards.

A non-key decision is one that is not a key decision.

The Forward Plan

The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council.

77

A
ppendix 1



Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council 

Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Cabinet – 17 January 2019

Draft Budget proposals 2019/20 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Draft Budget 
Proposals for 2019/20

17 Jan 
2019

To agree the draft budget 
proposals for  2019/20  for 
consultation

Budget
10 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Council – 31 January 2019

Financial Management 2018/19: Mid-year update
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

Consideration of the mid-
year financial position for 
2018/19

31 Jan 
2019

To agree any in year proposals 
in respect of the Council’s 
budget

Growth

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Appointment of Monitoring Officer 
Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the 
Council

Consideration of the 
appointment of the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer

31 Jan 
2019

To appoint a Monitoring Officer 
for the Council

N/A – Employment 
Committee

Aidan Rave
E-mail: aidan.rave@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet - 7 February 2019

Budget proposals 2019/20 (Budget framework - recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Final Budget 
Proposals for 2019/20

7 Feb 
2019

To approve the Cabinet’s 
budget proposals and 
recommend them to Council

Budget
10 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk 

78

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:aidan.rave@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Capital Strategy including the Treasury Management Strategy and the Asset, Investment and Regeneration Strategy 
(Recommendation to Council)

Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Capital 
Strategy including the 
Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2019/20 and the 
Asset, Investment and 
Regeneration Strategy

7 Feb 
2019

To make recommendations to 
Council on the Capital Strategy 
including the Treasury 
Management Strategy for 
2019/20 and the Asset, 
Investment and Regeneration 
Strategy

N/A – Governance & 
Audit Committee

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Armed Forces Discount Card (Key Decision)
Councillor Nick Neilson, Cabinet Member for 
Housing

To consider the introduction 
of a discount card for the 
armed forces

7 Feb 
2019

To agree the armed forces 
discount card scheme

Rural
23 January 2019

Lee Sirdifield
Tel: 01476 40 65 24
E-mail: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Leisure Offer
Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the 
Council

The provision of new and 
enhanced leisure centres 
across South Kesteven

This report may include 
information that is exempt 
under paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as 
amended)

7 Feb 
2019

To consider provision of new 
and enhanced leisure centres 
across South Kesteven

Culture & Visitor 
Economy

Paul Thomas
Tel: 01476 40 61 62
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Council – 1 March 2019

Budget 2019/20 and Council Tax Setting (Budget and Policy Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Budget 
for 2019/20 proposed by the 
Cabinet

1 Mar 
2019

To set Council Tax and agree 
a Budget for 2019/20

Budget
10 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

79

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Capital Strategy including the Treasury Management Strategy and Asset, Investment and Regeneration Strategy (Policy Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Capital 
Strategy including the 
Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2019/20 and the 
Asset, Investment and 
Regeneration Strategy

1 Mar 
2019

To approve the Council’s 
Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2019/20 and the 
Asset, Investment and 
Regeneration Strategy

N/A – Governance & 
Audit Committee

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Pay Policy Statement (Policy Framework)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

To consider the draft Pay 
Policy Statement for 2019/20

1 Mar 
2019

To approve the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement for 2018/19

N/A – Employment 
Committee

Elaine Pepper
Tel: 01476 40 61 32
E-mail: e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Arrangements for the operation of the Council’s Committees from May 2019
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council

To consider the 
recommendations of the 
working group set up to 
review the operation of the 
committees of the Council

1 Mar 
2019

To agree arrangements for the 
operation of the Council’s 
Committees in preparation for 
2019 municipal year

N/A – Governance 
working group

Ben Bix
Tel: 01476 40 65 15
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet – 7 March 2019

Statement of Community Involvement (Key Decision)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

Consideration of the draft 
Statement of Community 
Involvement in the context of 
feedback received during the 
public consultation period

7 
March 
2019

To adopt a Statement of 
Community Involvement 

Growth

Roger Ranson
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Rectory Farm Supplementary Planning Document (Key Decision)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

To consider the Rectory 
Farm Supplementary 
Planning Document following 
consultation on a draft 
document

7 Mar 
2019

To approve a Supplementary 
Planning Document in respect 
of Rectory Farm

Growth
13 February 2019

Kevin Cartwright
Tel: 01476 40 63 90
E-mail: k.cartwright@southkesteven.gov.uk

80

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:k.cartwright@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Asset Management Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

To consider the draft Asset 
Management Strategy

7 Mar 
2019

To adopt an Asset 
Management Strategy

Growth
13 February 2019

Jane McDaid
Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk

Council – 23 May 2019

Appointment of Independent Person (Council Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council

To consider the 
recommendations of the 
Employment Committee in 
respect of the appointment of 
an Independent Person

23 May 
2019

To appoint an Independent 
Person for the Council

N/A – Employment 
Committee

Lee Sirdifield
Tel: 01476 40 65 24
E-mail: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Cabinet – June 2019

Proposed development brief for land at Stamford North (Key Decision)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

To consider a draft 
development brief for land at 
Stamford North for 
consultation

Not 
before 
1 June 
2019

To agree a draft development 
brief for land at Stamford North 
for consultation

Growth

Roger Ranson
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet – December 2019

Council Tax Base 2020/21 (Recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To agree the Council Tax 
base for 2020/21, which will 
form the basis of the Budget 
proposals for the year

Not 
before 
1 Dec 
2019

To determine the Council Tax 
Base to form the basis of the 
2020/21 Budget proposals to 
be recommended to Council

Budget

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

81

mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Draft Budget proposals
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Draft Budget 
proposals for 2020/21

Not 
before 
1 Dec 
2019

To agree the draft budget 
proposals for 2020/21 for 
consultation 

Budget

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Other items – dates pending

St. Peter’s Hill Re-development – office remodelling  (Key Decision and recommendation to Council)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

To consider proposals for the 
refurbishment of the offices 
at St. Peter’s Hill, following 
the first phase of works to 
provide high quality public 
realm through to the new 
cinema 

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2019

To approve proposals and 
seek budget approval from 
Council

Growth

Jane McDaid
Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Strategic Regeneration Acquisitions (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

Information relating to this 
decision is exempt under 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended because it 
contains information which 
relates to the financial or 
business affairs of an 
individual or organisation

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2019

Growth

Paul Thomas
Tel: 01476 40 61 62
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Street lighting
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet 
Member for Environment

To consider 
recommendations made by 
the Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
regarding the adoption of a 
street lighting policy for 
South Kesteven

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2019

To adopt a street lighting 
policy for South Kesteven

Environment
24 April 2018

Paul Stokes
Tel: 01476 40 64 10
E-mail: p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk

82

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Cultural Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the 
Council

To consider the draft Cultural 
Strategy for South Kesteven

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2019

To adopt a Cultural Strategy 
for South Kesteven

Culture & Visitor 
Economy
12 July 2018 Michael Cross

Tel: 01476 40 61 29
E-mail: 
michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Local Plan (Policy Framework Proposal)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

Consideration of the revised 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
following examination and 
notice of modifications

Council 
Not 
before 
1 May 
2019

To adopt the revised Local 
Plan for South Kesteven

Growth

Roger Ranson
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

83

mailto:michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



CABINET

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Cabinet

17 January 2019

Decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members 
(LDS338)

Decision
Proposal:

Report for information

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support Assistant
Tel: 01476 406415    
Email: margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 31 December 2018

Ben Bix, Head of Governance
Tel: 01476 40 65 15 
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk  
Date: 4 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 4 January 2019

SUMMARY

This report provides an overview of decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members 
since the last meeting of the Cabinet on 20 December 2018.

85

Agenda Item 8

mailto:j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the decisions taken by individual Cabinet 
Members in the period since the last Cabinet meeting held on 20 December 2018.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Under the strong Leader model of governance the Leader can allocate 
decision-making power to the Cabinet and individual Cabinet Members. 
Decisions of the Cabinet will be made during Cabinet meetings while individual 
Cabinet Members may make decisions at any time in accordance with the 
relevant regulations.

1.2 All of the decisions made by individual Cabinet Members since the Cabinet last 
met are attached as appendices to this report. Both the report on which the 
decision was based and the decision notice are attached. 

1.3 Since the agenda was published for the Cabinet meeting on 20 December 
2018, the following decisions have been made:

 Establishment of  InvestSK, Memorandum of Understanding, 
Articles of Association 
Non-key decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications on 12 December 2018
Date decision effective: 21 December 2018
Report iSK005 and decision notice attached as appendix 1

 Confirmation and selection of the private sector partner for 
DeliverSK and commencement of legal processes to form the new 
partnership 
Non-key decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications on 19 December 2018 
Date decision effective: 31 December 2018
Report DSK003 and decision notice attached as appendix 2

 To enter into a 1-year lease of the second floor of The Maltings, 
Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH
Urgent non-key decision taken by the Deputy Leader of the Council on 
20 December 2018
Date decision effective: 20 December 2018
Report PD0107 and decision notice attached as appendix 3

1.4 Any decisions made after the publication of the agenda will be reported at the 
next meeting of the Cabinet. 

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No 
other options were considered.

86



3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were 
identified in the production of this report.  

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 This report provides an overview of decisions that have been made. Where 
appropriate impact analysis will have been undertaken on the reports on which 
decisions are based.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no financial comments arising from this report.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The provisions relating to the Cabinet, its Members and delegations by the 
Leader are as set out at Article 8 of the Constitution. The Strong Leader and 
Cabinet model to carry out executive functions was adopted by the Council in 
accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007 and the Local Democracy, Economic Regeneration and Construction Act 
2009.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1: Establishment of InvestSK, Memorandum of Understanding and 
Articles of Association

10.2 Appendix 2: Confirmation and selection of the private sector partner for 
DeliverSK and commencement of legal processes to form new partnership

10.3 Appendix 3: To enter into a 1-year lease of the second floor of The Maltings, 
Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 None; relevant background papers are listed on the report for each decision.

87



This page is intentionally left blank



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: Councillor Helen Goral
Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications

REPORT AUTHOR: Paul Thomas
Strategic Director for Growth
01476 406162
p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

REPORT NO. iSK005

DATE: 6th December 2018

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

For the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications to 
confirm:

1. The content of the proposed MOU and Articles of 
Association to be recommended to InvestSk Limited, on 
behalf of the Council, following consideration of 
comments from Growth OSC Committee’s meeting on 
25th July 2018

2. The initial award of seed funding

3. Membership of the Advisory Committee

CABINET 
MEMBER REMIT:

Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

There are none

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available on the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk via your Council and Democracy 
link

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended 
to report?

Not Applicable

Full impact assessment 
required?

No

89

Appendix 1

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


BACKGROUND 
PAPERS:

1. Report to Cabinet on the formation of iSK 10th May 2018 
(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20
293/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20i
SK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf) 

2. Minutes from Cabinet meeting of 10th May 2018. 
(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20
504/Minutes%2010052018%20Cabinet.pdf) 

3. Minutes of Growth OSC’s meeting of 29th May 2018. 
(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20
442/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20i
SK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf) 

4. Report to Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee 25th 
July 2018 
(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20
946/Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20-
%20iSK%20Articles%20and%20MOU%20250718.pdf)

5. Minutes of Growth OSC’s meeting of 25th July 2018 
(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g36
68/Printed%20minutes%2025th-Jul-
2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Sc
rutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1) 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1. The purpose of the report is threefold:

1.1.1. To present the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and Articles of 
Association (Articles) for InvestSK - as discussed with Growth Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (OSC), informed through discussion in a 
Cabinet Member and Senior Officer working Group and as considered 
by the iSK board – to the Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications, for her to approve.  

 
1.1.2. To confirm the amount of initial seed funding to be transferred to 

InvestSK so that they can be established.

1.1.3. To confirm the Membership of the Advisory Committee for InvestSK

Memorandum of Understanding 

1.2. The report to Cabinet of 10th May recognised that InvestSK was being 
established to deliver the growth ambitions of the Council, both in terms of the 
economy and ‘place making’. The outcomes required of InvestSK are 
articulated in the Memorandum of Understanding.

1.3. The MOU attached at Appendix 1 has been considered by the Growth OSC at 
their meeting of 25th July and its content has been informed by a working group 
comprising Cabinet Members and Senior Officers.  

90

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20293/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20iSK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20293/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20iSK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20293/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20iSK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20504/Minutes%2010052018%20Cabinet.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20504/Minutes%2010052018%20Cabinet.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20442/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20iSK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20442/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20iSK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20442/Report%20to%20Cabinet%20Formation%20of%20iSK%20100518%20draft%20v3%205%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20946/Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20-%20iSK%20Articles%20and%20MOU%20250718.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20946/Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20-%20iSK%20Articles%20and%20MOU%20250718.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20946/Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20-%20iSK%20Articles%20and%20MOU%20250718.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3668/Printed%20minutes%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3668/Printed%20minutes%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3668/Printed%20minutes%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3668/Printed%20minutes%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1


1.4. The MOU has also been considered by the ISK board and the version attached 
at Appendix 1 reflects its input.

Articles of Association

1.5. InvestSK was incorporated as a Private Company Limited by Guarantee on the 
13th June. The Articles of Association which were lodged with Companies 
House at that time were ‘model’ Articles that are normally used when a 
company first registers. A number of comments and concerns were raised 
through meetings of Growth OSC which informed a ‘tailored’ set of Articles 
being developed. 

1.6. The Articles attached at Appendix 1 have been considered by the Growth OSC 
at their meeting of 25th July and their content has been informed by a working 
group comprising Cabinet Members and Senior Officers.  

1.7. The Articles of Association have also been considered by the ISK board and the 
version attached at Appendix 2 reflects its input.

Seed Funding
 
1.8. Budgets for Economic Development and Culture, Arts and Heritage had been 

approved for 2018/19 by Full Council through its budget-setting process. In 
future years, investSK will present a business case to the Council, which will 
inform what budget is allocated for the new company. 

1.9. As InvestSK PCLG has been established mid-year, it is necessary to transfer a 
part-year budget. Initially, it is recommended that £225,000 be transferred and 
that further sums also be transferred to reflect the outcomes of the reconciliation 
and the draw-down of the Culture, Arts and Heritage budget.

Membership of the Advisory Committee 

1.10. The report to Cabinet of 10th May 2018 stated that it is best practice to set up an 
advisory committee to make decisions on behalf of the Council.

1.11. Councillor Goral has determined that the Advisory Committee shall comprise:

1.11.1. Councillor Helen Goral
1.11.2. Councillor Adam Stokes
1.11.3. Councillor Dr Peter Moseley 

1.12. The role of the Advisory Committee may change as part of the wider 
governance review that is to take place following the proposal to establish 
DeliverSK.
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

91



It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications confirms:

2.1. The content of the proposed MOU (attached at Appendix 1) and Articles of 
Association (attached at appendix 2) that will form the key company 
documents for InvestSK.

2.2. The initial award of seed funding of £225,000

2.3. Membership of the Advisory Committee for investSK, being Councillor 
Helen Goral, Councillor Adam Stokes and Councillor Dr Peter Moseley

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1. In respect of recommendation 2.1: The proposed Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) and Articles of Association have been discussed in detail 
at the Growth Overview and Scrutiny meeting of 25th July following in-depth 
discussions regarding the principles of InvestSK at its additional meeting of 29th 
May. The Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications has also taken 
advice from officers and fellow Cabinet Members in finalising the documents. 
The iSK has also considered the documents and are ready to submit to 
Companies House the versions attached at Appendix 1 and 2. 

3.2. In respect of recommendation 2.2: The reasons are as set out in paragraph 1.8 
and 1.9. Authority is in place to transfer the budgets for InvestSK. The phasing 
of further payments will be agreed once the full reconciliation is complete.

3.3. In respect of recommendation 2.3: The Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications has determined the membership of the Advisory Board. The 
need for and/or purpose of the board will be considered as part of a wider 
governance review of the Council’s companies.

4. COMMENTS FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES 

4.1. The financial implications are contained within the main body of the report

5. COMMENTS FROM LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

5.1. The legal implications of the company formation are considered within this 
report.

6. OFFICER CONTACT

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth
01476 406162, p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

7. DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:

7.1. If decision made on 12 December 2018 date effective will be 21 December 
2018

92



     

Memorandum of Understanding

Between

South Kesteven District Council 

and

InvestSK Limited

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) sets the terms and understanding 
between South Kesteven District Council (the Member) and InvestSK Limited (the 
company) as it delivers economic growth and place-making activities and services to 
the district of South Kesteven.  

Background

One of the member’s core priorities is to drive the economy and, with it, the growth 
and well-being of the District.  

Purpose

InvestSK has been specifically set up to deliver initiatives which drive significant 
growth in the economy of South Kesteven as well as progressing an important 
programme of associated delivery such as enhancing the district’s town centres, 
developing the skills required for businesses to flourish, making the most of South 
Kesteven’s visitor economy and celebrating arts and heritage 

The above goals will be accomplished by undertaking the following activities:

 Engaging with businesses to maximise growth and inward investment; utilising 
business intelligence in order to inform future strategies; and accelerating the 
growth of indigenous businesses.

 Leading on a collaborative approach to skills development alongside 
businesses and education establishments; putting the right infrastructure in 
place to maximise skills development in our communities.

 Marketing InvestSK to indigenous and potential new businesses and business 
networks, maximising knowledge of the Member's new inward investment 
team in order to optimise its impact.

 Developing a strategy which makes the most of the District's fine visitor 
attractions and encourages visitors to stay longer, and to do, and see, more.

 Exploring and optimising access to external funding opportunities for both our 
local communities, businesses and for the Member in order to increase local 

93



     

investment and maximise the beneficial outputs from important projects and 
initiatives. 

 Establishing a heritage regeneration programme across the district to ensure 
the area's rich heritage plays an important role in the district's growth and 
regeneration. Also working with partners to develop a Heritage Quarter for 
Grantham; celebrating its fine heritage, in the heart of the town, from St 
Wulfram's church to the railway arches.

 Leading on arts and cultural growth and initiatives to improve community and 
social well-being in the district.

 Leading on the enhancement of the District's Market Towns, with a focus on 
their retail environment and markets.

 Leading on an implementation plan for Grantham in order to develop it as a 
place where people want to come to and stay, growing the population to 
sustain vital services; creating a town where businesses invest and grow, 
where skills flourish, and where its culture, heritage and townscape make it a 
regional destination town. 

 The implementation plan will focus on nine economic elements: Commercial, 
Heritage and The Arts, Leisure and the Visitor Economy, Retail and the 
Markets, Public Realm, Living, Gateways, Transport and Skills. These elements 
will also form the basis for future masterplans across the district.

It is also appropriate to clarify those activities that do not form part of InvestSK’s 
purpose:

 Asset management or disposal

 Delivery of, or investment in, capital projects

Reporting

 InvestSK will present regular highlight reports, at no less intervals than 
quarterly, to the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications, setting 
out achievements according to objective output measures as set out in the 
Performance Management Framework.

 Quarterly performance reports (see Performance Management Appendix) will 
be reported, by the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications, to 
South Kesteven District Council’s Cabinet. 

 InvestSK will produce an annual report, at its year-end, including audited 
accounts, for the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications which will 
be presented to South Kesteven District Council’s Governance and Audit 

94



     

Committee in accordance with the Company’s report and audit production 
timescales.

 South Kesteven District Council’s Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee are the 
appropriate forums through which to question or challenge the activities of 
InvestSK. 

Funding 

 The Member will, through its budget setting, allocate a sum in accordance with 
InvestSK’s business planning and sufficient to deliver the expected outcomes.   

 InvestSK will be invited to submit a financial business plan by the 1st October  
each year in advance of the Member’s internal budget preparation 
programme. It should be noted that the Member’s budget whilst indicative 
over a three year rolling period is only definitive for one year. Arrangements 
will be made to guarantee the pay of InvestSK employees for the duration of 
this agreement and/or in accordance with any employment contract terms.

 The Member will provide professional and other services to InvestSK, to be 
determined through Service Level Agreement arrangements. 

Duration 

This MOU will come in to effect when the second of the parties signs it.  It will continue 
in force until 31st March 2022 unless:

- It is terminated by either of the parties by giving  6 months written notice to 
the other;

- It is mutually agreed in writing by the parties to terminate it at any point;
- It is extended in its original or modified form.  

The MOU can be modified by mutual written consent at any time.

Contact Information

South Kesteven District Council 
Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth
Council Offices, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, Lincolnshire, NG31 6PZ
01476 406162
p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

InvestSK
Steve Bowyer, CEO
InvestSK Limited, The Maltings, Wharf Road, Grantham N31 6BH
01476  406175

95



     

steve.bowyer@investsk.co.uk

Signatures:

Signed on behalf of South Kesteven District Council (the member)

________________________Date:
(Paul Thomas, Strategic Director Growth)

Signed on behalf of InvestSK Limited (the company)

________________________Date:
Steve Bowyer, CEO

96



InvestSK Appendix to MOU: Performance Management Framework

MOU Goal Measures
Engaging with businesses to maximise growth and inward 
investment; utilising business intelligence in order to inform future 
strategies; and accelerating the growth of indigenous businesses.

Inward Investment:
 Enquiries handled
 Projects landed (i.e. enquiries converted)
 Number and value of New Jobs created (Direct and 

Indirect)

Business Growth:
 Business engagement overall
 Direct support to businesses
 The number and value of new jobs created and 

safeguarded

 Maintenance and growth of comprehensive database 
of indigenous and interested businesses

Leading on a collaborative approach to skills development alongside 
businesses and education establishments; putting the right 
infrastructure in place to maximise skills development in our 
communities.

 Number of businesses engaged
 % increase in number of apprentices (/increase from 

baseline)
 Number of students (all age) enrolled on Higher 

Education courses within SK
 % increase in number of work experience 

placements (/increase from baseline)

Marketing InvestSK to indigenous and potential new businesses and 
business networks, maximising knowledge of the Council's new 
inward investment team in order to optimise its impact.

 Visits to website
 Dwell-time on website
 Number of positive media articles on the SK 

economy, across all channels

97



Developing a strategy which makes the most of the District's visitor 
attractions and encourages visitors to stay longer, and to do and see 
more.

 Increase in STEAM figures
 Number of visitor attractions engaged
 Number of events attended 
 Social media followers, across all platforms
 Web Activity (visitor numbers; dwell-time)

Exploring and optimising access to external funding opportunities for 
both our local communities, businesses and for the Council in order 
to increase local investment and maximise the beneficial outputs 
from important projects and initiatives. 

 Value of external funding applications supported 
and/or approved

Establishing a heritage regeneration programme across the district 
to ensure the area's rich heritage plays an important role in the 
district's growth and regeneration. Also working with partners to 
develop a Heritage Quarter for Grantham; celebrating its fine 
heritage, in the heart of the town, from St Wulfram's church to the 
railway arches.

 Number of shopfronts regenerated
 Number of grants awarded under local funding 

streams
 Social media followers on heritage issues
 Web activity (number of visitors; dwell-time) on 

Heritage Alive website
 Number of organisations supported

Leading on arts and cultural growth and initiatives to improve 
community and social well-being in the district.

Arts
 Number of arts organisations engaged
 Number of events delivered
 Visitor attendance figures at events (either increase 

from baseline, or % increase)

Sports and Wellbeing
 Number of local sports clubs engaged
 Number of local sports clubs supported
 Increase in participation from sports clubs

98



Science
 Number of science-related events outside of Gravity 

Fields
 Numbers of schools participating in STEM-related 

events

Leading on the enhancement of the District's Market Towns, with a 
focus on their retail environment and markets.

 Town centre footfall (there will need to be a specific 
budget allocation for this)

 Car Park income generated
 % increase in number of market stalls
 Town Centre vacancy rates

Leading on an implementation plan for Grantham in order to develop 
it as a place where people want to come to and stay, growing the 
population to sustain vital services; creating a town where 
businesses invest and grow, where skills flourish, and where its 
culture, heritage and townscape make it a regional destination town.

The implementation plan will focus on nine economic elements: 
Commercial, Heritage and The Arts, Leisure and the Visitor 
Economy, Retail and the Markets, Public Realm, Living, Gateways, 
Transport and Skills. These elements will also form the basis for 
future masterplans across the district.

 Agreement  of Implementation Plan with the Member

NOTE: InvestSK will consider the above measures and submit targets against each as part of its business planning for 2019/20 and 
for future years. It should be noted that delivery against agreed targets will be dependent upon sufficient resources being made 
available to achieve anticipated outcomes.

99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



    SCHEDULE 2                         Regulation 3

ARTICLES FOR INVESTSK LIMITED 
A PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

INDEX TO THE ARTICLES

PART 1
INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

1. Defined terms
2. Liability of members

PART 2
DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

3. Directors’ general authority
4. Members’ reserve power
5. Directors may delegate
6. Committees

DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS
7. Directors to take decisions collectively
8. Unanimous decisions
9. Calling a directors’ meeting
10. Participation in directors’ meetings
11. Quorum for directors’ meetings
12. Chairing of directors’ meetings
13. Casting vote
14. Conflicts of interest
15. Records of decisions to be kept
16. Directors’ discretion to make further rules

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
17. Methods of appointing directors
18. Termination of director’s appointment
19. Directors’ remuneration
20. Directors’ expenses

PART 3
MEMBERS

BECOMING AND CEASING TO BE A MEMBER

21. Applications for membership
22. Termination of membership

ORGANISATION OF GENERAL MEETINGS

101



23. Attendance and speaking at general meetings
24. Quorum for general meetings
25. Chairing general meetings
26. Attendance and speaking by directors and non-members
27. Adjournment

VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS
28. Voting: general
29. Errors and disputes
30. Poll votes
31. Content of proxy notices
32. Delivery of proxy notices
33. Amendments to resolutions

PART 4
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

34. Means of communication to be used
35. Company seals
36. No right to inspect accounts and other records
37. Provision for employees on cessation of business

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
38. Indemnity
39. Insurance

102



PART 1

INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Defined terms
1. In the articles for InvestSK Limited a not-for-profit company limited by 
guarantee, unless the context requires otherwise—

“articles” means the company’s articles of association;

“bankruptcy” includes individual insolvency proceedings in a jurisdiction 

other than England and Wales or Northern Ireland which have an effect 

similar to that of bankruptcy;

“chairman” has the meaning given in article 12;

“chairman of the meeting” has the meaning given in article 25;

“Companies Acts” means the Companies Acts (as defined in section 2 of 

the Companies Act 2006), in so far as they apply to the company;

“director” means a director of the company, and includes any person 

occupying the position of director, by whatever name called;

“document” includes, unless otherwise specified, any document sent or 

supplied in electronic form;

“electronic form” has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Companies 

Act 2006;

 “member” has the meaning given in section 112 of the Companies Act 

2006;

“ordinary resolution” has the meaning given in section 282 of the 

Companies Act 2006;

“participate”, in relation to a directors’ meeting, has the meaning given in 

article 10;

“proxy notice” has the meaning given in article 31;

“special resolution” has the meaning given in section 283 of the 

Companies Act 2006;

“subsidiary” has the meaning given in section 1159 of the Companies Act 

2006; and

“writing” means the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or 

other information in a visible form by any method or combination of 

methods, whether sent or supplied in electronic form or otherwise.

103



Unless the context otherwise requires, other words or expressions contained 
in these articles bear the same meaning as in the Companies Act 2006 as in 
force on the date when these articles become binding on the company.

Liability of members

2. The liability of each member is limited to £1, being the amount that each 
member undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of 
its being wound up while he is a member or within one year after he ceases to 
be a member, for—

(a) payment of the company’s debts and liabilities contracted before he 
ceases to be a
member,
(b) payment of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and
(c) adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves.

104



PART 2

DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ general authority

3.—Subject to the articles, the directors are responsible for the management 
of the company’s business the principle object of which is to support the 
member with the economic, social and cultural growth of South Kesteven for 
which purpose they may exercise all the powers of the company.  The 
directors may also exercise their responsibilities and powers in relation to any 
ancillary objects which may be conducive to, and/or are ancillary to, and/or 
align with, the company’s main objects whether in or outside the area of the 
South Kesteven area as the directors deem to be appropriate to the 
company’s business and which are for the benefit of the company and the 
member.  

Member’s reserve power

4.—(1) The Member may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or 
refrain from taking, specified action.
(2) No such special resolution invalidates anything which the directors have 
done before the passing of the resolution.
(3) The member or a representative(s) of the Member can be invited to board 
meetings as appropriate.
 
Directors may delegate 

5.—(1) Subject to the articles, the directors may delegate any of the powers 
which are conferred on them under the articles—

(a) to such person or committee;
(b) by such means (including by power of attorney);
(c) to such an extent;
(d) in relation to such matters or territories; and
(e) on such terms and conditions;

as they think fit.
(2) If the directors so specify, any such delegation may authorise further 
delegation of the directors’ powers by any person to whom they are 
delegated.
(3) The directors may revoke any delegation in whole or part, or alter its terms 
and conditions.

Committees
6.—(1) Committees to which the directors delegate any of their powers must 
follow procedures which are based as far as they are applicable on those 
provisions of the articles which govern the taking of decisions by directors.

105



(2) The directors may make rules of procedure for all or any committees, 
which prevail over rules derived from the articles if they are not consistent with 
them.

DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS

Directors to take decisions collectively

7.—(1) The general rule about decision-making by directors is that any 
decision of the directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a 
decision taken in accordance with article 8, and such decision will only be 
valid where it is supported by at least one  director who is an elected 
representative or officer of the Member.

Unanimous decisions

8.—(1) A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this article when 
all eligible directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a 
common view on a matter.
(2) Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, copies of 
which have been signed by each eligible director or to which each eligible 
director has otherwise indicated agreement in writing.
(3) References in this article to eligible directors are to directors who would 
have been entitled to vote on the matter had it been proposed as a resolution 
at a directors’ meeting.
(4) A decision may not be taken in accordance with this article if the eligible 
directors would not have formed a quorum at such a meeting.

Calling a directors’ meeting

9.—(1) Any director may call a directors’ meeting by giving notice of the 
meeting to the directors or by authorising the company secretary (if any) to 
give such notice with at least five working days’ notice of such a meeting
(2) Notice of any directors’ meeting must indicate—

(a) its proposed date and time;
(b) where it is to take place; and
(c) if it is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be 
in the same place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with 
each other during the meeting.

(3) Notice of a directors’ meeting must be given to each director in writing (this 
can include email).
(4) Notice of a directors’ meeting need not be given to directors who waive 
their entitlement to notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the 
company not more than 7 days after the date on which the meeting is held. 
Where such notice is given after the meeting has been held, that does not 
affect the validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.

106



Participation in directors’ meetings

10.—(1) Subject to the articles, directors participate in a directors’ meeting, or 
part of a directors’ meeting, when—

(a) the meeting has been called and takes place in accordance with the 
articles, and
(b) they can each communicate to the others any information or opinions 
they have on any particular item of the business of the meeting.

(2) In determining whether directors are participating in a directors’ meeting, it 
is irrelevant where any director is or how they communicate with each other.
(3) If all the directors participating in a meeting are not in the same place, they 
may decide that the meeting is to be treated as taking place wherever any of 
them is.

Quorum for directors’ meetings

11.—(1) At a directors’ meeting, unless a quorum is participating, no proposal 
is to be voted on, except a proposal to call another meeting.
(2) The quorum for directors’ meetings may be fixed from time to time by a 
decision of the directors, but it must never be less than half the total number 
of eligible directors, and must have present at least one director who is either 
an elected representative or officer of the Member.  
(3) If the total number of directors for the time being is less than the quorum 
required, the directors must not take any decision other than a decision—

(a) to appoint further directors, or
(b) to call a general meeting so as to enable the members to appoint 
further directors.

Chairing of directors’ meetings

12.—(1) The directors may appoint a director to chair their meetings and 
undertake any other duties delegated to that role in accordance with the 
provision of these Articles.
(2) The person so appointed for the time being is known as the chairman.
(3) The directors may also appoint a director to act as vice-chairman, who will 
be known as such and who will act as a substitute to the chair in the 
chairman’s absence.
(4) The directors may terminate the chairman’s or vice chairman’s 
appointment at any time subject to the decision-making provisions of these 
Articles.
(5) If the chairman is not participating in a directors’ meeting within ten 
minutes of the time at which it was to start, the vice chairman (if one has been 
appointed Artcile 12(3) above) will act as the chairman and in absence of the 
chairman and the vice chairman the participating directors must appoint one 
of themselves to chair it provided that the meeting is quorum.  

Casting vote

107



13.—(1) If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal are equal, the 
chairman, vice chairman or other director chairing the meeting has a casting 
vote.
(2) But this does not apply if, in accordance with the articles, the chairman, 
vice-chairman or other director is not to be counted as participating in the 
decision-making process for quorum or voting purposes.

Conflicts of interest

14.—(1) If a proposed decision of the directors is concerned with an actual or 
proposed
transaction or arrangement with the company in which a director is interested, 
that director is not to be counted as participating in the decision-making 
process for quorum or voting purposes.
(2) But if paragraph (3) applies, a director who is interested in an actual or 
proposed transaction or arrangement with the company is to be counted as 
participating in the decision-making process for quorum and voting purposes.
(3) This paragraph applies when—

(a) the company by ordinary resolution disapplies the provision of the 
articles which would otherwise prevent a director from being counted as 
participating in the decision-making process;
(b) the director’s interest cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give 
rise to a conflict of interest; or
(c) the director’s conflict of interest arises from a permitted cause.

(4) For the purposes of this article, the following are permitted causes—
(a) a guarantee given, or to be given, by or to a director in respect of an 
obligation incurred by or on behalf of the company or any of its 
subsidiaries;
(b) subscription, or an agreement to subscribe, for securities of the 
company or any of its subsidiaries, or to underwrite, sub-underwrite, or 
guarantee subscription for any such securities; and 
(c) arrangements pursuant to which benefits are made available to 
employees and directors or former employees and directors of the 
company or any of its subsidiaries which do not provide special benefits 
for directors or former directors.

(5) For the purposes of this article, references to proposed decisions and 
decision-making processes include any directors’ meeting or part of a 
directors’ meeting.
(6) Subject to paragraph (7), if a question arises at a meeting of directors or of 
a committee of directors as to the right of a director to participate in the 
meeting (or part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes, the question 
may, before the conclusion of the meeting, be referred to the chairman whose 
ruling in relation to any director other than the chairman is to be final and 
conclusive.
(7) If any question as to the right to participate in the meeting (or part of the 
meeting) should arise in respect of the chairman, the question is to be 
decided by a decision of the directors at that meeting, for which purpose the 
chairman is not to be counted as participating in the meeting (or that part of 
the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes.

108



Records of decisions to be kept

15. The directors must ensure that the company keeps a record, in writing, for 
at least 10 years from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous 
or majority decision taken by the directors.

Directors’ discretion to make further rules

16. Subject to the articles, the directors may make any rule which they think fit 
about how they take decisions, and about how such rules are to be recorded 
or communicated to directors.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Methods of appointing directors

17.—(1) Any person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law 
to do so, may be appointed to be a director—

(a) by ordinary resolution, or
(b) by a decision of the directors.

(2) In any case where the company has no directors, the member will direct 
new directors to the company to take over the running of the company’s 
business. 
  
Termination of director’s appointment

18. A person ceases to be a director as soon as—
(a) that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the 
Companies Act 2006 or is prohibited from being a director by law;
(b) a bankruptcy order is made against that person;
(c) a composition is made with that person’s creditors generally in 
satisfaction of that person’s debts;
(d) a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a 
written opinion to the company stating that that person has become 
physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may remain so 
for more than three months;
(e) notification is received by the company from the director that the 
director is resigning from office, and such resignation has taken effect in 
accordance with its terms. 
(f) They cease to hold the relevant office with the member (as the Leader, 
Deputy Leader or Chief Executive of the member).

Directors’ remuneration

19.—(1) Directors of the board will not receive remuneration

109



Directors’ expenses

20. The company may pay any reasonable expenses which the directors 
properly incur in connection with their attendance at—

(a) meetings of directors or committees of directors,
(b) general meetings, or
(c) separate meetings of the holders of debentures of the company, or 
otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the 
discharge of their responsibilities in relation to the company.

110



PART 3

MEMBERS

BECOMING AND CEASING TO BE A MEMBER

Applications for membership

21.  If at any time, there is a will for any additional member(s) of the company, 
this will require the consent of the existing member and will be subject to any 
reasonable conditions that the existing member may require.   

Termination of membership

22.—(1) A member may withdraw from membership of the company by giving 
at least 7 days’ notice to the company in writing.
(2) Membership is not transferable.
(3) Membership will be terminated forthwith by the member. in the case of the 
death or insolvency of a member or where the members’ business ceases to 
exist for any other reasons such termination without prejudice to any liabilities 
that may have arisen during their time as a member of the company which 
can still be pursued against the member, their personal representatives, 
administrators or liquidators or other person acting on their behalf to exist.

ORGANISATION OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Attendance and speaking at general meetings

23.—(1) A person is able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting 
when that person is in a position to communicate to all those attending the 
meeting, during the meeting, any information or opinions which that person 
has on the business of the meeting.
(2) A person is able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when—

(a) that person is able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to 
the vote at the meeting, and 
(b) that person’s vote can be taken into account in determining whether or 
not such resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all the 
other persons attending the meeting.

(3) The directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropriate 
to enable those attending a general meeting to exercise their rights to speak 
or vote at it.
(4) In determining attendance at a general meeting, it is immaterial whether 
any two or more members attending it are in the same place as each other.
(5) Two or more persons who are not in the same place as each other attend 
a general meeting if their circumstances are such that if they have (or were to 
have) rights to speak and vote at that meeting, they are (or would be) able to 
exercise them.

111



Quorum for general meetings
24. No business other than the appointment of the chairman of the meeting is 
to be transacted at a general meeting if the persons attending it do not 
constitute a quorum.

Chairing general meetings

25.—(1) If the directors have appointed a chairman, the chairman shall chair 
general meetings if present and willing to do so.
(2) If the directors have not appointed a chairman, or if the chairman is 
unwilling to chair the meeting or is not present within ten minutes of the time 
at which a meeting was due to start—

(a) the directors present, or
(b) (if no directors are present), the meeting,

must appoint a director or member to chair the meeting, and the appointment 
of the chairman of the meeting must be the first business of the meeting.
(3) The person chairing a meeting in accordance with this article is referred to 
as “the chairman of the meeting”.

Attendance and speaking by directors and non-members

26.—(1) Directors may attend and speak at general meetings, whether or not 
they are members.
(2) The chairman of the meeting may permit other persons who are not 
members of the company to attend and speak at a general meeting.

Adjournment

27.—(1) If the persons attending a general meeting within half an hour of the 
time at which the meeting was due to start do not constitute a quorum, or if 
during a meeting a quorum ceases to be present, the chairman of the meeting 
must adjourn it.
(2) The chairman of the meeting may adjourn a general meeting at which a 
quorum is present if—

(a) the meeting consents to an adjournment, or
(b) it appears to the chairman of the meeting that an adjournment is 
necessary to protect the safety of any person attending the meeting or 
ensure that the business of the meeting is conducted in an orderly 
manner.

(3) The chairman of the meeting must adjourn a general meeting if directed to 
do so by the meeting.
(4) When adjourning a general meeting, the chairman of the meeting must—

(a) either specify the time and place to which it is adjourned or state that it 
is to continue at a time and place to be fixed by the directors, and
(b) have regard to any directions as to the time and place of any 
adjournment which have been given by the meeting.

(5) If the continuation of an adjourned meeting is to take place more than 14 
days after it was adjourned, the company must give at least 7 clear days’ 
notice of it (that is, excluding the day of the adjourned meeting and the day on 
which the notice is given)—

112



(a) to the same persons to whom notice of the company’s general 
meetings is required to be given, and
(b) containing the same information which such notice is required to 
contain.

(6) No business may be transacted at an adjourned general meeting which 
could not properly have been transacted at the meeting if the adjournment 
had not taken place.

VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Voting: general

28. A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting must be decided on a 
show of hands unless a poll is duly demanded in accordance with the articles.

Errors and disputes

29.—(1) No objection may be raised to the qualification of any person voting 
at a general meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the 
vote objected to is tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting is 
valid.
(2) Any such objection must be referred to the chairman of the meeting whose 
decision is final.

Poll votes

30.—(1) A poll on a resolution may be demanded—
(a) in advance of the general meeting where it is to be put to the vote, or
(b) at a general meeting, either before a show of hands on that resolution 
or immediately after the result of a show of hands on that resolution is 
declared.

(2) A poll may be demanded by—
(a) the chairman of the meeting;
(b) the directors;
(c) two or more persons having the right to vote on the resolution; or
(d) a person or persons representing not less than one tenth of the total 
voting rights of all the members having the right to vote on the resolution.

(3) A demand for a poll may be withdrawn if—
(a) the poll has not yet been taken, and
(b) the chairman of the meeting consents to the withdrawal.

(4) Polls must be taken immediately and in such manner as the chairman of 
the meeting directs.

Content of proxy notices

31.—(1) Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a “proxy 
notice”)
which—

(a) states the name and address of the member appointing the proxy;

113



(b) identifies the person appointed to be that member’s proxy and the 
general meeting in
relation to which that person is appointed;
(c) is signed by or on behalf of the member appointing the proxy, or is 
authenticated in such manner as the directors may determine; and
(d) is delivered to the company in accordance with the articles and any 
instructions contained in the notice of the general meeting to which they 
relate.

(2) The company may require proxy notices to be delivered in a particular 
form, and may specify different forms for different purposes.
(3) Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under them is to vote 
(or that the proxy is to abstain from voting) on one or more resolutions.
(4) Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated as—

(a) allowing the person appointed under it as a proxy discretion as to how 
to vote on any ancillary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting, and
(b) appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the 
general meeting to which it relates as well as the meeting itself.

Delivery of proxy notices

32.—(1) A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a show of 
hands or on a poll) at a general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that 
meeting or any adjournment of it, even though a valid proxy notice has been 
delivered to the company by or on behalf of that person.
(2) An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the 
company a notice in writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on 
whose behalf the proxy notice was given.
(3) A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it is delivered 
before the start of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates.
(4) If a proxy notice is not executed by the person appointing the proxy, it 
must be accompanied by written evidence of the authority of the person who 
executed it to execute it on the appointor’s behalf.

Amendments to resolutions

33.—(1) An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be 
amended by ordinary resolution if—

(a) notice of the proposed amendment is given to the company in writing 
by a person entitled to vote at the general meeting at which it is to be 
proposed not less than 48 hours before the meeting is to take place (or 
such later time as the chairman of the meeting may determine), and
(b) the proposed amendment does not, in the reasonable opinion of the 
chairman of the meeting, materially alter the scope of the resolution.

(2) A special resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended 
by ordinary resolution, if—

(a) the chairman of the meeting proposes the amendment at the general 
meeting at which the resolution is to be proposed, and
(b) the amendment does not go beyond what is necessary to correct a 
grammatical or other non-substantive error in the resolution.

114



(3) If the chairman of the meeting, acting in good faith, wrongly decides that 
an amendment to a resolution is out of order, the chairman’s error does not 
invalidate the vote on that resolution.

115



PART 4

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

Means of communication to be used

34.—(1) Subject to the articles, anything sent or supplied by or to the 
company under the articles may be sent or supplied in any way in which the 
Companies Act 2006 provides for documents or information which are 
authorised or required by any provision of that Act to be sent or supplied by or 
to the company.
(2) Subject to the articles, any notice or document to be sent or supplied to a 
director in connection with the taking of decisions by directors may also be 
sent or supplied by the means by which that director has asked to be sent or 
supplied with such notices or documents for the time being.
(3) A director may agree with the company that notices or documents sent to 
that director in a particular way are to be deemed to have been received 
within a specified time of their being sent, and for the specified time to be less 
than 48 hours.

Company seals

35.—(1) Any common seal may only be used by the authority of the directors.
(2) The directors may decide by what means and in what form any common 
seal is to be used.
(3) Unless otherwise decided by the directors, if the company has a common 
seal and it is affixed to a document, the document must also be signed by at 
least one authorised person in the presence of a witness who attests the 
signature.
(4) For the purposes of this article, an authorised person is—

(a) any director of the company;
(b) the company secretary (if any); or

No right to inspect accounts and other records

36. Except as provided by law or authorised by the directors or an ordinary 
resolution of the company, no person is entitled to inspect any of the 
company’s accounting or other records or documents merely by virtue of 
being a member, although provision has been made for the Company to 
provide quarterly highlight reports and year-end reports to its founding 
member

Provision for employees on cessation of business
37. The directors may decide to make provision for the benefit of persons 
employed or formerly employed by the company or any of its subsidiaries 
(other than a director or former director or shadow director) in connection with 
the cessation or transfer to any person of the whole or part of the undertaking 
of the company or that subsidiary.

116



DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Indemnity

38.—(1) Subject to paragraph (2), a relevant director of the company or an 
associated company may be indemnified out of the company’s assets 
against—

(a) any liability incurred by that director in connection with any negligence, 
default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the company or an 
associated company,
(b) any liability incurred by that director in connection with the activities of 
the company or an associated company in its capacity as a trustee of an 
occupational pension scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the 
Companies Act 2006),
(c) any other liability incurred by that director as an officer of the company 
or an associated company.

(2) This article does not authorise any indemnity which would be prohibited or 
rendered void by any provision of the Companies Acts or by any other 
provision of law.
(3) In this article—

(a) companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both 
are subsidiaries of the same body corporate, and
(b) a “relevant director” means any director or former director of the 
company or an associated company.

Insurance

39.—(1) The directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the 
expense of the company, for the benefit of any relevant director in respect of 
any relevant loss.
(2) In this article—

(a) a “relevant director” means any director or former director of the 
company or an associated company,
(b) a “relevant loss” means any loss or liability which has been or may be 
incurred by a relevant director in connection with that director’s duties or 
powers in relation to the company, any associated company or any 
pension fund or employees’ share scheme of the company or associated 
company, and
(c) companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both 
are subsidiaries of the same body corporate.

117



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER 
DECISION

Decision:   

1. That approval is granted for the content of the proposed 
Memorandum of Understanding (attached at Appendix 1 to 
report iSK005) and the Articles of Association (attached at 
Appendix 2 to report iSK005) form the key company 
documents for InvestSK.  

2. That the initial award of seed funding of £225,000 is confirmed.
3. That the Membership of the Advisory Committee for InvestSK 

comprises Councillor Helen Goral, Councillor Adam Stokes 
and Councillor Dr Peter Moseley.

(1) Details of Decision

To seek confirmation in respect of:

The content of the proposed MOU and Articles of Association that will form 
the key company documents for InvestSK.

The initial award of seed funding of £225,000

Membership of the Advisory Committee for InvestSK

Considerations/Evidence

Memorandum of Understanding 

The report to Cabinet of 10th May recognised that InvestSK was being 
established to deliver the growth ambitions of the Council, both in terms of 
the economy and ‘place making’. The outcomes required of InvestSK are 
articulated in the Memorandum of Understanding.

The MOU has been considered by the Growth OSC at their meeting of 25th 
July and its content has been informed by a working group comprising 
Cabinet Members and Senior Officers.  

The MOU has also been considered by the ISK board and reflects its input.

119



Articles of Association

InvestSK was incorporated as a Private Company Limited by Guarantee on 
the 13th June. The Articles of Association which were lodged with Companies 
House at that time were ‘model’ Articles that are normally used when a 
company first registers. A number of comments and concerns were raised 
through meetings of Growth OSC which informed a ‘tailored’ set of Articles 
being developed. 

The Articles have been considered by the Growth OSC at their meeting of 
25th July and their content has been informed by a working group comprising 
Cabinet Members and Senior Officers.  

The Articles of Association have also been considered by the ISK board and 
reflects its input.

Seed Funding
 
Budgets for Economic Development and Culture, Arts and Heritage had been 
approved for 2018/19 by Full Council through its budget-setting process. In 
future years, InvestSK will present a business case to the Council, which will 
inform what budget is allocated for the new company. 

As InvestSK PCLG has been established mid-year, it is necessary to transfer 
a part-year budget. Initially, it is recommended that £225,000 be transferred 
and that further sums also be transferred to reflect the outcomes of the 
reconciliation and the draw-down of the Culture, Arts and Heritage budget.

Membership of the Advisory Committee 

The report to Cabinet of 10th May 2018 stated that it is best practice to set up 
an advisory committee to make decisions on behalf of the Council.

Councillor Goral has determined that the Advisory Committee shall comprise:

 Councillor Helen Goral
 Councillor Adam Stokes
 Councillor Dr Peter Moseley

The role of the Advisory Committee may change as part of the wider 
governance review that is to take place following the proposal to establish 
DeliverSK.

 

(3) Reasons for Decision:

The proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and Articles of 
Association have been discussed in detail at the Growth Overview and 

120



Scrutiny meeting of 25th July following in-depth discussions regarding the 
principles of InvestSK at its additional meeting of 29th May. The Cabinet 
Member for Growth and Communications has also taken advice from officers 
and fellow Cabinet Members in finalising the documents. The iSK has also 
considered the documents and are ready to submit to Companies House. 

Authority is in place to transfer the budgets for InvestSK. The phasing of 
further payments will be agreed once the full reconciliation is complete.

The Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications has determined the 
membership of the Advisory Board. The need for and/or purpose of the board 
will be considered as part of a wider governance review of the Council’s 
companies.

Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).

NONE

Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Helen Goral
Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications

Date of Decision: 12 December 2018

Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 13 December 2018

Date decision effective (i.e. 5 days after the date of publication of record of 
decision unless subject to call-in by the Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or any 5 members of the Council from any political groups):

21 December 2018

121



This page is intentionally left blank



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: Councillor Helen Goral
Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications

REPORT AUTHOR: Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth
Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director for Resources

REPORT NO. DSK003

DATE: 13th December 2018

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

Confirmation and selection of the private sector partner for 
DeliverSK and commencement of legal processes to form 
the new partnership.

CABINET 
MEMBER REMIT:

The Cabinet Member has responsibility for Growth and 
Communications and has Delegated Authority from Cabinet 
(meeting of 6th September 2018) to confirm the private sector 
partner and enter into necessary legal agreements to set up 
DeliverSK.

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

None

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available on the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk via your Council and Democracy 
link

Due to the commercial sensitivities that apply to the partner 
selection process, the details of the potential partners 
considered throughout the selection process are contained in 
the exempt appendix attached to this report. The appendix is 
exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) for the reasons referred to 
in paragraph 1.5 of this report.

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended to 
report?

Not Applicable

Full impact assessment 
required?

No

123

Appendix 2

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


BACKGROUND 
PAPERS:

Report DSK001 – DeliverSK
Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee (29th August 2018)
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21224/Del
iverSK%20Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20290818.pdf

Report DSK002 – DeliverSK.
Cabinet (6th September 2018)
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21251/Del
iverSK%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20060918.pdf

Report CFM473 – Budget Framework Proposal
Council (27th September 2018)
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21424/CF
M473%20BFPCouncil%20Sept%202018v2.pdf

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1. DeliverSK will be the Council’s arm’s length physical growth and regeneration 
delivery vehicle.  It will work alongside InvestSK to focus on delivering a range of 
potential projects, including (but not limited to):

1.1.1. Medium and large-scale housing developments (including social and 
affordable housing)

1.1.2. Office and employment space development and refurbishment
1.1.3. Leisure facility development and refurbishment
1.1.4. Mixed-use regeneration schemes
1.1.5. Securing institutional investment and identifying grant opportunities

1.2. DeliverSK will manage multiple projects at different stages in their development 
simultaneously. In the September 2018 Cabinet report on establishing DeliverSK, 
it was noted that although a conventional procurement process would not be 
required, a transparent process would be undertaken to select a partner with the 
following characteristics.

1.2.1. Experience of working with the public sector, sharing SKDC’s values 
and commitment to growing the economy of the district

1.2.2. Diverse access to capital markets and finance, creating necessary 
flexibility for different funding for different project types

1.2.3. Commercial skills and experience across a range of corporate and 
property transactions and developments

1.2.4. A commitment to a long-term partnership on a fair and equal basis, 
working constructively with SKDC representatives on project 
development

1.2.5. Understanding the Council’s ambitions and supporting community 
priorities and projects

124

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21224/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20290818.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21224/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20290818.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21251/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20060918.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21251/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%20Cabinet%20060918.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21424/CFM473%20BFPCouncil%20Sept%202018v2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21424/CFM473%20BFPCouncil%20Sept%202018v2.pdf


1.3. A four-stage process was undertaken for partner selection.  

1.3.1. Firstly, a long-list of options was drawn up of potential partners, either 
from their public presence in this sector, their participation in existing 
or past partnerships with the public sector, or because they had 
previously approached SKDC along a partnership or Joint Venture 
(JV) line.

1.3.2. Secondly, this long-list was narrowed to a short-list of potential 
partners based on the criteria above and a desk-top assessment of 
how they would ‘fit’ with SKDC and its distinct ambitions.

1.3.3. Thirdly, the 3 short-listed potential partners were asked to submit their 
proposals, which were then assessed.

1.3.4. Finally, the preferred partner from this process was invited to present 
to Councillor Goral, her Cabinet colleagues, and senior officers, on 
12th December 2018.

1.4. More detail of the stages is provided in paras 1.6 to 1.10 below.

1.5. The details of the potential partners considered through this process are set out 
in the exempt appendix attached to this report to preserve the Council’s 
commercial position.  Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended) applies to the information contained in exempt appendix 1 
because it relates to the financial or business affairs of an individual or 
organisation (including the Council). Having regard to the public interest test, it is 
considered that on balance it is necessary to protect the Council’s and the 
potential partners’ respective commercial positions by applying this exemption.  If 
that were not the case, the parties’ positions would be compromised and/or 
prejudiced.

Stage 1

1.6. The long-list included a mix of institutional, local and specialist investment 
potential partner options. This was based on market intelligence, consideration 
of sector involvement in partnerships of different forms with local authorities, and 
direct approaches made to the Council by interested parties following the 
announcement of the DeliverSK initiative.

1.7. Nine potential partners were considered. These potential partners are named in 
Exempt Appendix 1.

Stage 2

1.8. Using the criteria set out in paragraph 1.2 above, the long-list was narrowed down 
to three. Evidence of the consideration of the potential partners against the 
agreed criteria is set out in Exempt Appendix 1. 

125



Stage 3

1.9. All three shortlisted potential partners submitted their proposals, which were 
considered by the Strategic Director for Growth. 

Stage 4

1.10. The recommended partner was invited to present to Councillor Goral and her 
Cabinet Colleagues. The presentation took place on 12th December, and Cabinet 
supported Councillor Goral in respect of the recommendation contained within 
this report.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1. It is recommended that the company named in Exempt Appendix 1 is selected as 
the private sector partner with whom the Council will set-up DeliverSK, and that 
due diligence and legal processes are commenced so that DeliverSK can be 
formally created and start work as soon as practically possible.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1. The recommended partner was selected following an agreed process that 
assessed a long-list of potential partners against criteria agreed by Cabinet on 6th 
September 2018.

4. COMMENTS FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES 

4.1. The budget for the initial set-up costs and initial working capital for DeliverSK has 
been approved by Council.

5. COMMENTS FROM LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

5.1. Expert legal advice has been taken on the process to select a partner (see section 
14 of report DSK001). 

5.2. The process set out in reports DSK001 and DSK002 was expanded to include a 
presentation to Cabinet; so that it could support Councillor Goral in her decision 
making.

126



6. OFFICER CONTACTS

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth
p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406162

Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director for Resources
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406301

7. DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:
7.1. If decision made on 19 December 2018 date effective will be 31 December 2018

127

mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

129

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER 
DECISION

Decision:   

That approval is granted that the Company named in exempt 
appendix 1 to report DSK003 is selected as the private sector 
partner with whom the Council will set-up DeliverSK, and that due 
diligence and legal processes are commenced so that DeliverSK 
can be formally created and start work as soon as practically 
possible.

(1) Details of Decision

To undertake Confirmation and selection of the private sector partner for 
DeliverSK and commencement of legal processes to form the new 
partnership.

(2) Considerations/Evidence

DeliverSK will be the Council’s arm’s length physical growth and regeneration 
delivery vehicle.  It will work alongside InvestSK to focus on delivering a 
range of potential projects, including (but not limited to):

 Medium and large-scale housing developments (including social and 
affordable housing)

 Office and employment space development and refurbishment

 Leisure facility development and refurbishment

 Mixed-use regeneration schemes

 Securing institutional investment and identifying grant opportunities

DeliverSK will manage multiple projects at different stages in their 
development simultaneously. In the September 2018 Cabinet report on 
establishing DeliverSK, it was noted that although a conventional 
procurement process would not be required, a transparent process would be 
undertaken to select a partner with the following characteristics.

133

Appendix 3



 Experience of working with the public sector, sharing SKDC’s values 
and commitment to growing the economy of the district

 Diverse access to capital markets and finance, creating necessary 
flexibility for different funding for different project types

 Commercial skills and experience across a range of corporate and 
property transactions and developments

 A commitment to a long-term partnership on a fair and equal basis, 
working constructively with SKDC representatives on project 
development

 Understanding the Council’s ambitions and supporting community 
priorities and projects

A four-stage process was undertaken for partner selection.  

Firstly, a long-list of options was drawn up of potential partners, either from 
their public presence in this sector, their participation in existing or past 
partnerships with the public sector, or because they had previously 
approached SKDC along a partnership or Joint Venture (JV) line.

Secondly, this long-list was narrowed to a short-list of potential partners 
based on the criteria above and a desk-top assessment of how they would ‘fit’ 
with SKDC and its distinct ambitions.

Thirdly, the 3 short-listed potential partners were asked to submit their 
proposals, which were then assessed.

Finally, the preferred partner from this process was invited to present to 
Councillor Goral, her Cabinet colleagues, and senior officers, on 12th 
December 2018.

More detail of the stages is provided in paras 1.6 to 1.10 below.

The details of the potential partners considered through this process are set 
out in the exempt appendix attached to this report to preserve the Council’s 
commercial position.  Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) applies to the information contained in exempt 
appendix 1 because it relates to the financial or business affairs of an 
individual or organisation (including the Council). Having regard to the public 
interest test, it is considered that on balance it is necessary to protect the 
Council’s and the potential partners’ respective commercial positions by 
applying this exemption.  If that were not the case, the parties’ positions 
would be compromised and/or prejudiced.

134



Stage 1

The long-list included a mix of institutional, local and specialist investment 
potential partner options. This was based on market intelligence, 
consideration of sector involvement in partnerships of different forms with 
local authorities, and direct approaches made to the Council by interested 
parties following the announcement of the DeliverSK initiative.

Nine potential partners were considered. These potential partners are named 
in Exempt Appendix 1.

Stage 2

Using the criteria set out in paragraph 1.2 above, the long-list was narrowed 
down to three. Evidence of the consideration of the potential partners against 
the agreed criteria is set out in Exempt Appendix 1. 

Stage 3

All three shortlisted potential partners submitted their proposals, which were 
considered by the Strategic Director for Growth. 

Stage 4

The recommended partner was invited to present to Councillor Goral and her 
Cabinet Colleagues. The presentation took place on 12th December, and 
Cabinet supported Councillor Goral in respect of the recommendation 
contained within this report.

(3) Reasons for Decision:

The recommended partner was selected following an agreed process that 
assessed a long-list of potential partners against criteria agreed by Cabinet 
on 6th September 2018.

Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).

NONE

135



Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Helen Goral 
Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications

Date of Decision: 19 December 2018

Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 20 December 2018

Date decision effective (i.e. 5 days after the date of publication of record of 
decision unless subject to call-in by the Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or any 5 members of the Council from any political groups):

31 December 2018

136



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Deputy Leader of the Council

REPORT AUTHOR: Lianne Smith, Property Officer

REPORT NO. PD0107

DATE: 20 December 2018

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

To enter into a 1 year lease of the second Floor, The
Maltings, Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH

CABINET 
MEMBER REMIT:

Business Transformation and Commissioning

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

None

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available on the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk via your Council and Democracy 
link

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended 
to report?

Not Applicable

Full impact assessment 
required?

No
BACKGROUND 
PAPERS: None

(1) PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 The building will be used to establish, support and promote the identity of
the InvestSK team as part of the Council’s focus on economic development and
regeneration priorities.

137

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


(2) RECOMMENDATION(S)

To authorise SKDC to enter into a lease of the Second Floor, The Maltings, Wharf 
Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH on the terms set out in the report for a 1 year term with 
the ability to terminate at any time during the term giving 3 months written notice.

(3) REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To allow SKDC to break the current lease with the landlord on 19th December 
2018 and then to enter into a new lease with the landlord on part only, which will then 
be sublet to Invest SK.

3.2 The terms of the lease between the Landlord and South Kesteven District Council 
are:

Lease: A new Internal Repairing & Insuring lease
Term: 1 Year
Rent: £20,954 per annum 
Option To Break: The tenant may determine the lease at any time during the 
term upon giving 3 months written notice.
Use: Offices
Service Charges: 
The tenant will pay, as rent, a fair and reasonable proportion of the costs 
incurred by the Landlord in providing common services. These are 14.5% of 
the costs incurred. No extraordinary expenses are planned or anticipated for 
the current year. 
Commencement Date: As soon as practically possible 
Insurance Premium: The apportioned annual premium attributable to this 
suite for the current year is £282.27 [To Be Confirmed] (annual renewal each 
January). 
Costs: Each party to be responsible for their own legal and other
professional costs incurred in creating the lease.
VAT: All sums quotes are exclusive of VAT which is payable at the
prevailing rate.

3.2 An existing revenue budget allocated within the current financial year has been
identified to cover costs associated with leasing these premises.

3.3 A sub lease between SKDC and Invest SK is to be put in place, mirroring the 
terms of the lease between SKDC and the landlord.

3.4 To relocate Invest SK to other offices within Grantham would be considerably 
disruptive and expensive. The cost involved with relocating and setting up in a new 
premise for a short term of 6 months would be a misuse of Council money. Invest SK 
in the medium term will look to relocate within St Peters Hill in Grantham and 
therefore relocating twice in one year would be unreasonable and expensive when a 
temporary option is available in their current location. SKDC are currently not in a 
position to allow Invest SK to take occupation within the Council offices due to the 
shortage of space available during the Public Realm works.

138



3.5 An SLA agreement will be set up which will incorporate the facilities and 
maintenance provisions carried out by SKDC.

3.6 Invest SK will be responsible for the internal repair and insuring of the premises 
for the duration of the licence period, including all associated running costs.

3.7 Invest SK will occupy the demised area for a term of six months at a rent of 
£1,746.17 (excl. VAT) per month. This is a short term option until an office space is 
available at St Peters Hill in Grantham. SKDC will be liable for the service charge 
with a proportion set at 14.5% but the cost will be recovered back from Invest SK in 
full. Two car parking spaces will be granted at the front of the building and the 
provision of five spaces in the car park allocated on Station Road, Grantham.

3.8 SKDC will terminate the head lease once Invest SK are in a position to relocate 
within St Peters Hill. SKDC will then serve notice on the landlord giving 3 months’ 
notice.

3.9 Ward members have not been approached to comment due to the tight 
timeframe available. SKDC previously served notice to break the lease on 19th 
December 2018 and if the lease is not signed by both parties on or before 19th 
December 2018 there is a risk that the break will not be actioned and SKDC will be 
liable for another year on the whole office. SKDC no longer have a requirement for 
the whole floor. 

3.10 The proposed new lease, which will run from 20th December 2018 is only for 
part of the current office and will release SKDC from £18,000c rent, plus service 
charge, insurance and other running costs.

(4) COMMENTS FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES 

The costs associated with this proposed lease will be recharged to Invest SK (a 
wholly owned Council company).  Invest SK will meet these costs from the proposed 
financial allocation the Council makes to the company on an annual basis.  

(5) COMMENTS FROM LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

The current lease from the landlord to the tenant must be effectively terminated 
before any new lease is completed. The proposed break in the terms of the new 
lease can only be effectively exercised if the proposed lease is excluded from the 
provisions of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.

The proposed sub-let must be permitted in the terms of the head lease between the 
landlord and the Council. 

(6) OFFICER CONTACT

139



Chris Pike – Assets and Estates Manager – 07811 845679

(7) DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:  20 December 2018

Urgent decision required due to timescales in which it was confirmed 
that Invest SK would be unable to relocate to the St Peter’s Hill Council 
Offices and the uncertainty of who would be taking on the lease. 

140



URGENT CABINET 
MEMBER DECISION

Decision:   

That approval is given for SKDC to enter into a lease of the Second 
Floor, The Maltings, Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH on the term 
set within report PD0107 for a one year term with the ability to 
terminate at any time during the term giving three months written 
notice.

(1) Details of Decision

To seek authorisation to enter into a lease of the Second Floor, The Maltings, 
Wharf Road for a one year term with the ability to terminate at any time 
during the term giving three months written notice.

(2) Considerations/Evidence

The building will be used to establish, support and promote the identity of the 
InvestSK team as part of the Council’s focus on economic development and 
regeneration priorities.

(3) Reasons for Decision:

To allow SKDC to break the current lease with the landlord on 19th December 
2018 and then to enter into a new lease with the landlord on part only, which 
will then be sublet to Invest SK.

The terms of the lease between the Landlord and South Kesteven District 
Council are:

Lease: A new Internal Repairing & Insuring lease
Term: 1 Year
Rent: £20,954 per annum 
Option To Break: The tenant may determine the lease at any time 
during the term upon giving 3 months written notice.
Use: Offices
Service Charges: 
The tenant will pay, as rent, a fair and reasonable proportion of the 
costs incurred by the Landlord in providing common services. These 

141



are 14.5% of the costs incurred. No extraordinary expenses are 
planned or anticipated for the current year. 
Commencement Date: As soon as practically possible 
Insurance Premium: The apportioned annual premium attributable to 
this suite for the current year is £282.27 [To Be Confirmed] (annual 
renewal each January). 
Costs: Each party to be responsible for their own legal and other
professional costs incurred in creating the lease.
VAT: All sums quotes are exclusive of VAT which is payable at the
prevailing rate.

An existing revenue budget allocated within the current financial year has 
been identified to cover costs associated with leasing these premises.

A sub lease between SKDC and Invest SK is to be put in place, mirroring the 
terms of the lease between SKDC and the landlord.

To relocate Invest SK to other offices within Grantham would be considerably 
disruptive and expensive. The cost involved with relocating and setting up in 
a new premise for a short term of 6 months would be a misuse of Council 
money. Invest SK in the medium term will look to relocate within St Peters Hill 
in Grantham and therefore relocating twice in one year would be 
unreasonable and expensive when a temporary option is available in their 
current location. SKDC are currently not in a position to allow Invest SK to 
take occupation within the Council offices due to the shortage of space 
available during the Public Realm works.

An SLA agreement will be set up which will incorporate the facilities and 
maintenance provisions carried out by SKDC.

Invest SK will be responsible for the internal repair and insuring of the 
premises for the duration of the licence period, including all associated 
running costs.

Invest SK will occupy the demised area for a term of six months at a rent of 
£1,746.17 (excl. VAT) per month. This is a short term option until an office 
space is available at St Peters Hill in Grantham. SKDC will be liable for the 
service charge with a proportion set at 14.5% but the cost will be recovered 
back from Invest SK in full. Two car parking spaces will be granted at the 
front of the building and the provision of five spaces in the car park allocated 
on Station Road, Grantham.

SKDC will terminate the head lease once Invest SK are in a position to 
relocate within St Peters Hill. SKDC will then serve notice on the landlord 
giving 3 months’ notice.

Ward members have not been approached to comment due to the tight 
timeframe available. SKDC previously served notice to break the lease on 

142



19th December 2018 and if the lease is not signed by both parties on or 
before 19th December 2018 there is a risk that the break will not be actioned 
and SKDC will be liable for another year on the whole office. SKDC no longer 
have a requirement for the whole floor. 

The proposed new lease, which will run from 20th December 2018 is only for 
part of the current office and will release SKDC from £18,000c rent, plus 
service charge, insurance and other running costs.

Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).

NONE

Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Kelham Cooke
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Business Transformation and 
Commissioning

Date of Decision: 20 December 2018

Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 20 December 2018

Date decision effective:  20 December 2018

This decision has been taken under Special Urgency provisions due 
to the timescales in which it was confirmed that Invest SK would be 
unable to relocate to the St Peter’s Hill Council Offices and the 
uncertainty of who would be taking on the lease.

The decision is not therefore subject to call-in.

143



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 December 2018
	4 Draft Budget proposals 2019/20
	CFM485 Appendix A Capacity Bids
	CFM485 Appendix B Fees & Charges
	CFM485 Appendix C Capital Programme and reserves statement
	CFM485 Appendix D HRA capital and reserves statement

	5 Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny Committees
	6 Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members
	7 Cabinet Forward Plan
	1 Jan 2019 to 31 Dec 2019

	8 Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.
	Non Key Decision relating to establishment of InvestSK PCLG Final
	Appendix 1 Memorandum of Understanding Final (003)
	Performance Management Framework with Final
	Appendix 2 Tailored Articles of Association Final (003)
	HG iSK005 12.12.18
	DeliverSK NKD for Approval of Partner 131218 Final
	EXEMPT APPENDIX 1 to NKD for Approval of Partner for Deliver...
	HG DSK003 19.12.18
	PD0107 - 071218 - NKD The Maltings (003) (002)
	KC PD0107 20.12.18


